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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD
DIRECTORS REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is that of a tour operator and travel agent.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The loss for the period ended 31 March 2015 amounted to Rs 5,029,054 (period ended 31
December 2013 - Rs 3,959,223). The directors have not declared any dividends during the
period ended 31 March 2015 (Period ended 31 December 2013: Rs NIL).

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PERIOD

The Company has changed its financial year end to 31 March. Comparative results refer to the
period from 01 October 2012 to 31 December 2013, whereas the current period results refer to
the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 March 2015.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2015 are set out on
pages 7 to 31. The auditor’s report on these financial statements is on pages 5 and 6.

DIRECTORS

The list of directors of the Company who held office during the year is set out on page 1.
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period

which present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures, disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the tinancial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to

presume that the Company will continue in business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the
financial statemaents.

Tho dirootore aro roopongsible for Kkceping proper acvuunling reods  which discluge  wlth
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure that the tinancial statements comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001. They are
also responsible tor sateguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevenlion and delection of fraud and ather irreglarities

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The directors do not hold any interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company.
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DIRECTORS REPORT (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS
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No contracts of significance or loans existed during the period under review between the Company

and its Directors.

DONATIONS

The Company made no donations during the period (Period ended 31 December 2013 — Rs Nil).

FEES PAID TO AUDITOR

The fees, excluding VAT charged by the auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for audit and other

services, were:

Period from Period from

01 January 01 October

2014 to 2012 to

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Audit Fees 160,000 150,000
Tax services 26,250 26,250
186,250 176,250

AUDITOR

The auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has indicated its willingness to continue in office and will

be automatically re-appointed at the next Annual Meeting.

Authorised for issue by the Board of directors on May 0 7
and signed on its behalf by: 5
) U
} RECTORS




THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

15 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

In our capacity as Company Secretary, we hereby certify, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, that Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited has filed with the
Registrar of Companies, for the financial period ended 31 March 2015, all such returns as
are required of the Company under The Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and that all such
returns are true, correct and up to date.

EXECUTIVE SERVICES LIMITED

Per Ah Man WONG TOO YAN
Secretary

Date: May () [ 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd (the “Company”)
on pages 7 to 31 which comprise the statement of financial position at 31 March 2015 and the
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from 01 January
2014 to 31 March 2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with
the requirements of the Mauritian Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is [o expiess an opunou ou Lhese linancial statements based on our audit. We
conducled vur audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. ‘Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfarming procedures to ahtain andit evidence ahaut the amounts and discloguros
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. Tnmaking Uiose risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 18 CyberCity, Ebéne, Réduit 72201, Republic of Mauritius
T: +230 404 5000, F:+230 404 5088/89, www.pwc.com/mu
Business Registration Number : FO7000530

PricewaterhouseCoopers is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Intemational Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd

Report on the Financial Statements (Continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 7 to 31 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company at 31 March 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with
the Mauritian Companies Act 2001.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Mauritian Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to
you on the following matters. We confirm that:

(a)  we have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditor
and tax advisor;

(h)  we have obtained all the information and cxplanations we have required; and

(¢)  inouropinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears
from our examination of those records.

~
w/'

PricewaterhouseCoopers Mmushtaq Posman, licensed by FRC

v/ May 2015
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Page 7

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Equipment (Note 4)
Intangible asset (Note 5)
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables (Note 6)
Cash at bank and in hand {Note 7)

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Stated capital (Note 8)

Share application monies (Note 8)
Accumulated losses

Net equity

Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases
(Note 15)

Gratuity obligations (Nnte 9)

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (Note 11)

Obligations under finance leases
{(Note 15)

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

These financial statements have heen approved for issus by tha Rnard nf Dirnntora nn]:ﬂa}, U 7 15

Narne of directors

The notes set out on pages 11 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statem

Rs

Rs

31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs

925,664 1,206,890
17,719 30,759
943,383 1,237,649
4,114,077 12,548,166
11,890,955 4,761,375
16,005,032 17,309,541
16,948,415 18,547,190
18,326,000 1,310,000
- 2,516,000
{19,537,500) (14,494,416)
(1,211,500) (10,668,416)
448,176 644,984
44,000 18,000
492,176 660,984
17.508,357 28,413,895
159,382 140,727
17,667,739 28,554,622
18,159,915 29,215,606
) 168,948.415 10,047,195

Signaturc

erns.



THOMAS COOK {MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015
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Commission receivable {Note 13)
Other operating income

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income

Finance cost

Finance income — net

Loss before income tax {Note 14)

Income tax {(Note 12)

Loas [ur Uie petivd

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of gratuity on retirement {(Note 9}
Total comprehensive income for the period

Period from Period from
01 January 01 October 2012
2014 to to

31 March 2015 31 December
2013

Rs Rs
7,033,238 8,810,268
843,918 359,023
(12,913,768) (13,341,535)
{(5,036,612) (4,172,244)
95,680 186,733
{88,052) (62,886)
7.528 123,847
(5,029,084) {4,048,397)
- 89,174
{5,029,084} {3,959,223)
(14,000) -
(5,043,084) (3,959,223)

The notes set out on pages 11 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015
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At O1 October 2012

Comprehensive loss

Loss for the period

Total comprehensive
income for the period

At 31 December 2013

Issue of share capital(Note 8)
Conversion of share application
monies into stated capital

Comprehensive income

Loss for the period

Remeasurements of post
employment benefit
obligations

Total comprehensive
income for the period

At 31 March 2015

Share
Stated application Accumulated

capital monies losses Total

Rs Rs Rs Rs
1,310,000 2,516,000 (10,535,193) {6,709,193)
- - (3,959,223) (3,959,223)

- - (3,959,223) (3,959,223)
1,310,000 2,516,000 (14,494,416) (10,668,416)
14,500,000 - - .
2,516,000 (2,516,000) - -
- - (5,029,084) (5,029,084)

- - {14,000) {14,000)
17,016,000 - (5,043,084) (5,043,084)
Rs 18,326,000 - (19,537,500) (1,211,500)

The notes set out on pages 11 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015
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Period from 01

Period from 01

January 2014 to October 2012 to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax (5,029,084) (4,048,397)
Adjustments for:
Interest expense 88,052 62,886
Depreciation of equipment {Note 4) 255,595 346,730
Amortisation of Intangible assets (Note 5) 22,840 27,966
Loss on disposal of equipment 78,573 214,563
Gratuity charge 14,000 5,000
Impairment charge on trade receivables(Note 6) - 1,267,734
Reversal of impairment of trade
receivables{Note 6) (684,105) -
Interest income (95,580) (186,733)
Operating cash flows before working capital
changes {5,349,709) (2,310,251)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables 9,118,194 {9,021,440)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (10,905,538} 7,720,075
Net cash used in operations (7.137.,053) (3,611,616)
Interest paid (88,052) (62,886)
Income tax paid - (4,44Y9)
Net cash used in operating activities (7, 225,105) (3,678,951)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of equipment {62,942) (249,144)
Interest income 95,580 186,733
Purchase of software (9,800) (16,892)
Proceeds from sale of equipment . - 772.000
Net cash from investing activities 32,838 692,697
Cash flows from financing activities
lssue of share capital (Note 8) 14,500,000 -
Frinvapal poymeat of flnance leace {170,150 L {RY, M)
Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities 14,321,847 693,689
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 7,129,580 (3,679,834)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 4,761,375 8,441,209
period
Cash and cash equivalents at period end
(Note 7) Rs 11,890,955 4,761,375

The notes set out on pages 11 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THOMAS COOK {MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Thomas Cook {(Mauritius) Holidays Ltd {the “Company”} is a private company limited by shares
incorporated in Mauritius. The registered office is situated at Ground Floor, Anglo Mauritius
House, 4 Intendence Street, Port Louis.

The main activity of the Company is to deal in inbound and outbound travel packages.

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. The financial statements are presented in Mauritian Rupee ('Rs’).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

The Company current assets exceed its current liabilities by Rs 1,662,707 (31 Dccember 2013
- N3 11,245,081) and is I a net llablllty position ot Hs 1,211,b00 at 31 March 2015 (31
December 2013- Rs 10,668,416). The intermediate parent, Thomas Cook (India) Limited has
confirmed its intention to provide continuing financial support to the Company so as to enable
the Company to continue its operations in the foreseeable future and will provide financial
support so that the Company meets the financing of its liabilities. Consequently, the directors
have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
fa) New standards amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company

The following standards have been adopted by the Company for the first time for the financial
period beginning on or after O1 January 2014 and have no material impact on the Companv’s

tinancial statements

Amendment to IAS 189, ‘Einpluyee benelits’ regarding employee or third party contributions to
defined benefit plans. The amendment applies to contributions from employees or third partias to
defined benefit plans and clarifies the treatment ot such contributions. The amendment
distinguishes between contributions that are linked to service only in the period in which they arise
and those linked to service in more than one period. The objective of the amendment is to simplify
the accounting for.contributions that are independent of the number of years of employee service,
for example employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary.
Entities with plans that require contributions that vary with service will be required to recognise
the benefit of those contributions over employee’s working lives.



Page 12

THOMAS COOK {MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
{al New standards amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, on the recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financiatl assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUs
which had been included in IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS 13.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy if that liability is within
the scope of IAS 37 ‘Provisions’. The interpretation addresses what the obligating event is that
gives rise to pay a levy and when a liability should be recognised. The Company is not currently
subjected to significant levies so the impact on the Company is not material. Other standards,
amendments and interpretations which are effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2014 are not material to the Company’s financial statements.

{b) New standards amendments and interpretations not yet adopted by the Company

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 01 January 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial
statements of the Company, except the following set out below:

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recognition and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or
service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or
service. The standard replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and
related interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2017 and earlier application is permitted. The Company is assessing the impact of IFRS
15.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected
to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Foreign currency translation
Functional currency and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in ‘Mauritian Rupee’ (Rs), which is the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the transiation at period-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or
loss. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive
income within ‘other operating income/{loss)’.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS} HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equipment

Equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on eqguipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Office equipment: 4.75%
Computer equipment: 25.00%
Furniture and fittings: 6.33%
Motor vehicles: 15.00%

Depreciation is provided in full in the month of addition and in respect of assets written off and
disposed, up to the month of write off and disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in profit or loss. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other operating income/ {loss)’ in the statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets — Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful

lives (4 years).

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised
as an expense as incurred. Costs that are. directly associated with the development of
identifiable and unique software products controlled hy the Company, and that will probably
generate economic benefits exceeding costs heyond one year, are recognised as intanqihle
aseots. Losts include the employee costs incurred as a result of developing software and an
appropriate portinn of relevant overheade,

Devalopment oogte that aro dirootly attributabls o the desigo And esiing nf identitiabla and
nninnie snftwara producte oontrollod by tho sompany are 1otuynised as hitdiiglble asssts when

the following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
¢ management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

e it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic

benefits;
e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or

sell the software product are available; and
e the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably

measured.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 {CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets — Computer software (Continued)

Other development expenditure that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset
in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives which does not exceed 4 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready
t0 use ~ are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units). Prior impairments
of non-financial assets other than goodwill are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification
The Company classifies its tinancial assets as: loans and receivables. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting period. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Company’s lnans and receivables comprise ‘trade and othcr receivables’ and ‘cash
at bank and in hand’ in the statement of financial position.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event {(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months. In the statement of financial position, bank ovordrafta arc shown separately williin

current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Where the Company purchases its equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes} is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders untii
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the company’s equity holders.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 {CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Current income tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

Deferred income tax Is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Gratuity obligations

The Company does not operate a pension scheme for its employees. Employees are entitled to a
gratuity payment on retirement under the terms of the Employment Rights Act 2008.
Accordingly the Company’'s qualified actuary has determined for the gratuity obligations in line
with the requirements of the Employment Rights Act 2008 at the end of the reporting period and
the Company has booked this obligation in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of gratuity obligations is
the present value of the gratuity obligations at the end of the reporting period. The gratuity
obligations is calculated annually by independent actuaries. The present value of the gratuity
obligations is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension

obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits.

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

Employee benetits include wages, salaries, social security contributions, travelling and insurance.
These costs are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlement to annual leave and other benefits are supposed to be recognised when
they accrue to the employees. However the Company encourages all employees to take ail their
annual leave and other benefits during the year and hence there is na provision required.

Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and vaiue added taxes.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Company’s activities, as described below. The Company bases its
estimate of return on histarical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of air tickets and tour packages

Fees and commissions on air tickets and travel packages sold by the Company are recognised
when the service has been provided. Commissions earned as the general sales agent of airline
operators are recognised on the basis of the revenue derived by the airline operator from all

tickat nalnn marin in Magritina
Sale of Euro rail tickets

Fees and commigsiong on kuro rail tioleta sold by the Company aie recugisised when Lhe service

has been provided.

L’express sales

Fees and Commission earned on |'express sale are recognised when the service has been
provided and is derived on the basis of the revenue from the l'express sale made by the

Company.
Sale of travel insurance

Fees and Commission earned on sale of travel insurance sold by the Company are recognised
whon tha acrviee haa haan providad

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

The Company leases certain equipment. Leases of equipment where the Company has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased

property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the

asset and the lease term.
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharehoiders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholder.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position includc trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, obligations under finance leases and trade and other
payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy
statements associated with each item.

Disclosures about financial instruments to which the Company is a party are provided in Note 17.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Depreciation and amortisation rates

The Company depreciates or amortises its assets over their estimated useful lives. The
estimation of useful lives is based on historical performance and expectation about future use

and requires significant degree of judgement.
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b INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software

Cost Rs
At 01 October 2012 105,148

Additions 16,892

At 31 December 2013 122,040

Additions 9,800
At 31 March 2015 Rs 131,840

Depreciation

At 01 October 2012 63,315

Charge for the year 27,966

At 31 December 2013 91,281

Charge for the period 22,840

At 31 March 2015 Rs 114,121

Net book value
At 31 March 2015 Rs 17,719
At 31 December 2013 Rs 30,759
6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 March 31 December

2016 2013

Rs Rs

Trade receivables 2,340,568 6,129,887
Provision for doubtful debts (1,344,517) (2,028,622)
996,051 4,101,265

Amounts due by related parties (Note 16) 1,630,139 8,252,619
Other receivables and prepayments 1,587,887 194,282

Rs
4.114.077 12,548,166

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is equal to the carrying

value of each class of trade and nther recerivahles mentioned abovo.

Amounts receivable from related companies contain no provision for impairment as they are fully

performing and the directors consider these to be fully recoverable.

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of Rs 877,033 (31 December 2013: Rs 3,997,383)

were fully performing, that is neither past due nor impaired.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of Rs 119,256 (31 December 2013: Rs 103,882) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom there is no recent
history of default and the directors have assessed that these will be recoverable in the
foreseeable future.

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of Rs 1,344,517 (31 December 2013: Rs 2,028,622)
were impaired and fully provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
customers who are either in financial difficulty or where management believe that these
receivables are unfikelv 10 he rernvered in the faresesable future Tho agoing analyois of those
trade receivables is as follows:

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Not past due 877,033 3,997,383

Past due but not impaired

31 - 90 days 119,256 20,577
91-120 days - 1,117
+ 120 days - 82,188
119,256 103,882

Past due and impaired 1,314,279 2,028.622
2,340,568 6,129,887

The carrying amount of the Company’s trade receivables is denominated in the following
currencies:

31 Mareh 31 Deceamnbes

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Mauritian rupee 2,125,325 2,056,909
United States dollar 215,243 4,072,978
T 2,340,568 6.129,8R7

Movement an the Campany’s pravisinn far impairment of trado roooivablos arc 03 follow s.

31 March 31 Deecember

2015 2013

Rs Rs

At start of period 2,028,622 760,888
(Reversal of)/ additional provision for

impairment (684,105) 1,267,734

At end of period 1.344.517 2,028,622
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6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand
Cash at bank

Total cash in hand and at bank

8 STATED CAPITAL

(a) Stated capital

Issued and fully paid:
183,260 Ordinary shares of Rs100 each

At start of the year
Issue during the year
At end of the year

Rs

31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs

4,150 5,601
11,886,805 4,755,774
11,890,955 4,761,375
31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
18,326,000 1,310,000
31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
1,310,000 1,310,000
17,016,000 -
18,326,000 1,310,000

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries a right to vote but no right to fixed

income.

(b) Share application monies

The share application monies represented funds transferred by the holding company, Thomas
Cook {Mauritius) Holding Company Limited, pending allotment of shares. The share application
monies have been converted to stated capital as at 31 March 2015.
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9 GRATUITY OBLIGATIONS
(a) Under the Employment Rights Act 2008

The Company has recognised a net defined liability of Rs 44,000 in the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2015 (31 December 2013 - Rs 16,000) in respect of any retirement
gratuities that are expected to be paid out of the Company’s cash flow to its employees as per
the Employment Rights Act 2008.

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

At start of period 16,000 11,000

Charged to profit or loss 14,000 6,000

Debit to other comprehensive income 14,000 {1,000)

At end of period Rs 44,000 16,000

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX {ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

The movement in deferred tax during the year is as follows:

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

At start of period - 89,174

Credited to profit or loss - (R9,174)

At end of period Rs -

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs 1,917,085 (31 December 2013:
Rs 1,026,167). The directors are of the opinion that under the volatile economic situation where
there is a lack of visibility over the long term, there is doubt that the Company can generate
sufficient future taxable income to extinguish the deferred tax assets arising on the following
temporary differences:

At 31 March At 31 December
ZU'lh 2013
Ks Rs
Accumulated lax lusses 1,605,480 666,403
Gratuity oubliyalivis 7,480 2,720
Provision fur hpahitienl ol tade recelvables 228,527 344,866
Accelerated capital allowance over depreciation 75,5697 22,088
1,917,085 1,026,167

The expiry dates of the accumulated tax losses are as follows:
31 March 20190 4,813,021
31 March 2020 4,644,980

9,458,001
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11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Trade payables 1,301,253 6,193,651
Amounts due to related parties (Note 16) 9,891,358 13,727,668
Other payables and accruals 6,315,746 8,492,576
Rs 17,508,357 28,413,895

The average credit period on purchase of air ticket is 30 days. The Company has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

12 INCOME TAX

Period from Period from
01 January 2014 01 October 2012
to 31 March to 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax liability - -
Deferred income tax {credit)/charge {(Note 10) - (89,174)
- (89,171}

The tax on the Company’s loss before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the basic tax rate of the Company as follows:

Period from Period from

01 Jdanuory 2014, N1 Netahar

to 31 March 2012 to 31

2015 December

2013

Rs Rs

Loss before income tax (5,029,084) (4,048,397)

Tax calculated at a rate of 17% (2013: 17%) (854,944) (688,227)
Adjustments for:-

Last year's provision paid in the current year - 10,554

Non-deductible expenses 11,789 (289,000)

Deferred tax asset not recognised {Note 10) 843.155 ) R77.499

Income tax expense for the year - (89,174)
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13 COMMISSION INCOME

Gross billings
Costs paid to service providers

Period from

01 January 2014
to

31 March 2015
Bs

106,743,478

Period from
01 October
2012 to

31 December
2013

Rs

137,016,533

14 LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

Loss for the period is arrived at after charging:

Depreciation on equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Staff costs:

Salaries and allowances

Social security costs

State pension plan

National Pension Scheme Contribution expensed

g 15

Leasing drrangement

(99.710,240) (128,206,265)

7,033,238 8,810,268
255,595 346,730
22,840 27,966
6,095,793 7,939,420
206,422 255,439
185,034 168,179

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Finance leases relate to motor vehicles with lease terms of 5 years. The Company has options to
purchase the vehicles for a nominal amount at the conclusion of the lease agreement. The
Company's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets.

Fair value

The fair value of the finance lease liabilities is approximately equal to their carrying amount as

the effect of discounting is not significant.

Finanog laase abilitica

Minimum lease payments

Present value of minimum lease

Payments
1 31 Maich 31 Deueniber 31 wiaren 31 Uecember
f 2015 2013 2015 2013
= Rs Rs Rs Rs
Within one year 212,964 212,964 159,382 140,727
Between 2 and 5 years 505,321 771,525 448,176 644,984
718,285 984,489 607,558 785,711

Less:
Future finance charges (110,727) (198,778) - -
607,558 785,711 607,558 785,711




THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

Page 27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 {CONTINUED)

16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are entities with common direct or indirect shareholders and/or directors. Parties
are considered to be related only in one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

Amounts due by related parties:

(i) Thomas Cook (India) Ltd

At start of period

Expenses paid by the Company
Payments received by the Company
At end of period

(iii) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Trave/ Ltd
At start of period
Expenses paid by the Company
Payment received by the Company
At end of period

Total amount due by related parties

Amounts due to related parties:

(i)  Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company

Limited
At start of period
Expenses paid on behalf of the Company

Amount repaid by the Company
At end of period

(iiit  Thomas Cank (Indinl {td

At start of period

Payment/{receipts) on behalf of the Company

At end of period

Total amount due to related partioc

31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
7,602,017 -
1,630,139 7,602,017
(7,602,017) -
1,530,139 7,602,017
650,602 596,310
- 54,292
(650,602)
- 650,602
1,530,139 8,252,619
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
13,727,668 9,674,421
1,039,420 4,053,247
(5,000,000) -
9,767,088 13,727,668
- 377,321
124,270 (377,321)
124,270 -
9,091,300 13,727,888

the amounts recewvable trom/payable to related parties are unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand.
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17 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency
risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Company’'s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by finance function under policies approved by the board of
directors. The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess

liquidity.

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes borrowings, offset by
cash and cash equivalents and equity comprising issued capital, and accumulated losses.

Fair values

Except where stated elsewhere, the carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and
financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of the balances

involved.

Categories of financial instruments

31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs

Financial assets (Loans and receivables)
Trade and other receivables 3,373,520 12,353,884
Cash in hand and at bank 11,890,955 4,761,375
15,264,475 17,115,259

Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)

Trade and other payables 17,282,586 28,413,895
Obligations under finance leases 607,558 785,711
17,890,144 29,199,606

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange rate of the Mauritian rupee relative to the
currencies listed below may change in a manner which has a material effect on the reported
values of its assets and liabilities.
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17 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Currency profile of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities is summarised
below:

Financial assets Financial liabilities
31 March 2015 31 December2013 31 March 2015 31 December2013
Rs Rs Rs Rs
Currency
Mauritius rupee 13,245,434 6,332,443 15,015,232 28,566,934
United States dollar 2,019,041 10,782,816 2,874,912 632,672
15,264,475 17,115,259 17,890,144 29,199,606

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to United States dollar.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the
Mauritian Rupee against the United States Dollar. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10 % change in foreign currency rates. A
negative number below indicates a decrease in profit/an increase in loss where the Mauritian
Rupee strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening of the Mauritian
Rupee ayainsl Lthe relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit,
and the batances betlow would be positive.

Impact of 10% increase of the Mauritian Rupee against 31 March 31 December
the United States Dollar: 2015 2013

Rs Rs
Loss/profit Rs (85,587) 1,015,014

The above is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure outstanding on receivables and
exposure on cash and cash equivalents. In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unraprescntative of the inhoronl lurcign exchange visk as penod year end exposure docs not
reflecl Lhe exposure during the period.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts
presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by management based on prior experience and represents the company's maximum
exposure to credit risk. Refer to Note 6 for disclosure on financial risk management with respect
to credit risk.



Page 30

THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLIDAYS LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

17 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as it does not borrow funds at
floating interest rate.

Liguidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by
continously monitaring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of

financial assets and liabilities.

As the financial liabilities is due within one vyear, the directors expect that the effect of
discounting is not material and approximates the fair value.

The maturity profile of the financial instruments is summarised as follows:

31 March 2015 Between Between
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
Rs Rs Rs Rs
Trade and other payables 17,282,586 - - 17,282,586
Obligations under finance 212,964 212,964 292,357 718,285
lease
17,495,550 212,964 292,357 18,000,871
31 December 2013
Trade and other payables 28,413,895 - - 28,413,895
Obligations under finance 212,964 212,964 558,561 984,489
lease
28,626,859 212,964 558,561 29,398,384

18 CONTINGENT LIABILITIFS

AT 31 Warch 2U1b, there were contingent liabilities in respect of quarantees in the ardinary
course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise. At 31 March
2015, hank guarantees amounted to Rs 3,130,000 (2013 - Rs1,900,000).
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19 HOLDING AND ULTIMIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Company's immediate holding company, Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited
holds 100 % of the shares of the Company. Thomas Cook ({(India) Limited, a Company
incorporated in India, holds 100% of the shares of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company

Limited.

Fairbridge Capital {Mauritius) Limited ("Fairbridge”), a subsidiary of Fairfax Financial Holdings
Limited (the “ultimate parent”), Canada, held 185,653,725 equity shares of INR 1/- each
corresponding to 74.96% stake in Thomas Cook (India) Limited as on 31 December 2013. As
at 31 March 2015, the Fairfax Group (including Fairbridge and its affiliates) holds 203,923,725
equity shares of INR 1/- each corresponding to 74.77% stake in Thomas Cook (India) Limited.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the
period ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is to deal in foreign exchange.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The loss for the period amounted to Rs 1,376,591 (2013 —Rs 4,603,176). The directors have not
declared any dividends during the period ended 31 March 2015 (period ended 31 December 2013: Rs

NIL).
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2015 are set out on pages 9
to 38. The auditor’s report on these financial statements is on pages 7 and 8.

DIRECTORS
The list of directors of the Company who held office during the period is set out on page 1.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period which
present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. state whether the Guideline on Corporate Governance have heen adhered to; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to

presume that the Company will continue in business.

I he directors contirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The directars are rasponsihie for keeping proper accniinting recards which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001 and the Banking Act 2004. They
are &l30 respunsible fur saleyuardiny e assels of lhe Company and hence fof taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm that adequate accounting records have been maintained and effective system
of internal control and risk management were in place.

DIRECTORS INTERESIS
The directors do not hold any interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The Company is a fellow subsidiary of Thomas Cook (India) Limited, a Company incorporated in India
and the ultimate holding company is Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada. The Company is
committed towards Thomas Cook Corporate Governance Guidelines and conducting business with
the highest ethical standards during the period ended 31 March 2015.

Sound corporate governance is fundamental as to how the Company operates and a critical part of
corporate responsibility. The Corporate Governance Guidelines and Structures provide a strong
foundation for responsiveness and accountability.

The Bank of Mauritius has issued Guidelines on Corporate Governance for financial institutions
governed under the Banking Act 2004 and which is applicable to the Company for the financial period
ended 31 March 2015.

As per guidelines board should comprise of at least 5 natural persons and 40% independent directors.
Company has complied provisions related with constitution of board of directors as per Guidelines.
Company is in the process of adhering to other provisions of the guidelines.

Board Charter

Definition

The purpose of the Board Charter is to outline the principal role of the Board of Directors (Board), the
demarcation of the roles, functions, responsibilities and powers of the Board, and matters reserved for
final decision-making or pre-approval by the Board; and the policies and practices of the Board in
respect of matters such as conflicts of interest and convening of Board meetings.

Role of the board

The role of the Board is lo pruvide leadership and guldance to the Company's management and
direct, supervise and control the performance of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible
for the long -term success of the Company and delivery of sustainable value to shareholders. In
discharging its duties, the Board should be guided by the interests of the company and its business
and shall take into account the interest of the stakeholders. The Board is ultimately accountable to the
shareholders. The Board has thc ultimatc responsibility of ensuring that an appropiiate and well
documenled Curpurate Governance framework Is in place.

Power nf the Roard

The Board is responsible for managing the business of the Company and, in doing so, may exercise
all the powers of the Company, subject to any relevant laws and regulations and to the Articles of
Association (“Articles”).

Responsibliltles

The broad responsibilities of the Board are to

+  Set the Company’s vision, mission and values

- Determine the appropriate policies and processes to ensure the integrity of the
institution’s risk management practices and internal controls, communication policy,
director selection, orientation and evaluation.

+ Monitor and evaluate the implementation of strategies, policies and performance
measurements

« Exercise leadership, enterprise, integrity and judgement in directing the Company

« Ensure full and effective control over the Company and be responsible for the
appointment and monitoring of management in its implementation of the boards’
approved plans and strategies.

+ Identify and assess key risk areas of the business and ensure measures are taken to
mitigate those risks

»  Ensure that effective internal controls gyeteme arc in place to safeguard the Company's
assets.

+ Ensure that the Board functions independently of management and put in place
appropriate structure and procedures to achieve and project its independence.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board Charter (continued)

Appoint and menitor management in order to allow the public to appreciate that the board
is independent and operates at a level higher than management.

Ensure compliance with laws and regulations, including risk management and corporate
governance practices and disclosure requirements.

Ensure that the Company's pclicies and systems are effective enough to achieve a
prudential balance between the risk and potential returns to the sharehclders.

Monitor and assess risks in order to achieve the continuous viability of the Company at all
times

Review details of foreign exchange exposure and steps taken by the management to limit
the risks of adverse exchange rate movement

See that adequate systems and procedures have been established, and sufficient
resources committed to ensure compliance with the requirement of law, regulations and
guidelines issued by the statutory authorities

Review financial plans of the Company

Approve the budget and financial statements / accounts of the Company

Consider and approve declaration / recommendation of dividend, if any

Frame and review Corporate Social Responsibility policy of the Company and monitor
implementation thereof

Verify the systems and controls from time to time

Ensure overall stewardship of the company

Delegation of Power

The Board delegates the management and day-to-day running of the Company to the Chief Operating
Officer (COO) in accordance with such polices and directions as the Board may from time to time

determine. In addition:

The Rnard may delegafe fn and annfer nn the OO any nf its powera, aintharities and
discretions for such time and on such terms as It thinks fit, with the power to the COO to
further sub-delegate.

The Board may delegate any of its powers, authorities and discretions for such time and
on such terms as it thinks fit to any committee consisting of one or more Directors.

The Board may also, by power ol alloiney ur otherwise, appoint any person or persons to
be the agent of the Company and may delegate to any such person or persons any of its
powers, authorities and discretions for such time and on such terms as it thinks fit.

Power delegated to COO

To act as the main spokesperson of the Company under the guideline of the Board of
directors.

To develop the Company’s vision, mission and values and recommend to the Board of
directors strategies (both short term and long term) to achieve them.

To develop internal control and procedures to protect the Company’s interest.

Ensure compliance with laws and regulations, including risk management and corporate
governance practices and disclosure requirements.

Develop processes and structures to ensure that capital investment proposals are
reviewed thoroughly, that associated risks are identified and appropriate steps taken to

manage the risks.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Board Charter (continued)

 To develop annual business plan and budgets and ensure financial and operation
objectives are achieved.

« To assist the management and Board in making strategic decisions and be responsible
for evolving and executing a holistic business plan

- Project and ensure that the Company projects high ethics, integrity and value.

« Ensure that management succession and management development plans are in place

and presented to the Board from time to time.
« Establish a close relationship of trust with the Chairman, reporting key development to

him in a timely manner and seeking advice and support as appropriate.

Significant Contracts

No contracts of significance or loans existed during the period under review between the Company and
its Directors.

Donations

The Company made donations of Rs NIL during the period (2013 — Rs 25,000).

Directors’ Remuneration

During the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 March 2015, remuneration paid to the directors by the
Company are as follows:

Period ended Period ended
31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Non executive independent directors- Sitting Fee 135,000 75,000
Executive director 3,384,795 764,609

Fees Paid To Auditor

The fees, excluding VAT charged by the auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for audit and other services,
were:

Period ended Period ended
31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Audit Fees 790,150 735,000
Tax and other services _ 133,700 97,250
923850 832250

Auditor

The auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has indicated its willingness to continue in office and will be
automatically re-appointed at the next Annual Meeting.

Authorised for issue by the Board of directors on Ma}’ 07 2015
and signed on its behalf by:

}




THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

15 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

In our capacity as Company Secretary, we hereby certify, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, that Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company Limited has filed
with the Registrar of Companies, for the financial period ended 31 March 2015, all such
returns as are required of the Company under The Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and

that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

AWK

EXECUTIVE SERVICES LIMITED
Per Ah Man WONG TOO YAN
Secretary

Date:
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company
Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company Limited
{the “Company”) on pages 9 to 38 which comprise the statement of financial position at 31 March 2015
and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from o1
January 2014 to 31 March 2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with
the requiretenls of Lhe Mauritian Companies Act 2001, the Banking Act 2004 and regulations and
guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 18 CyberCity, Ebéne, Réduit 72201, Republic of Mauritius
T: +230 404 5000, F:+230 404 5088/89, www.pwec.com/mu
Business Registration Number : FO7000530

PricewaterhouseCoopers is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm of which is a separate tegal enlity.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company
Limited (Continued)

Report on the Financial Statements (Continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 9 to 38 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company at 31 March 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with

the Mauritian Companies Act 2001.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Mauritian Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to
you on the following matters. We coulinin Lhal:

(a)  weliave no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditor
and tax advisor;

(b)  we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and

(¢)  inour opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears
from our examination of those records.

The Banking Act 2004 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on the
following matters. We confirm that:

(a) in our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the
preceding year and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the Banking Act
2004 and the regulations and guidelines of the Bank of Mauritius; and

L) LLie explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Company
were satisfactory.

-

f\A‘CuJ‘Q/O |

PricewaterhouseCoopers Mushtaq Qosman, licensed by FRC

07 May 2015



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Page 9

Notes 31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 4 12,148,592 12,201,239
Intangible assets 5 2,613,836 2,312,340
Deferred income tax asset 11 1,134,800 214,114
15,897,228 14,727,693
Current assets
Investment in Treasury Bills 6 22,897,862 21,479,260
Trade and other receivables 7 18,628,596 22,751,413
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding bank overdrafts) 13 81,376,701 111,180,989
122,903,159 155,411,662
TOTAL ASSETS 138,800,387 170,139,355
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Stated capital 8 100,000,000 100,000,000
Retained earnings 23,611,778 24,988,369
Total equity 123,611,778 124,988,369
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Gratuity obligations Q 229,000 145,000
Obligations under finance leases 10 1,341,480 475,435
1,570,480 820,435
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables 12 6,742,516 34,868,135
Bank overdraft 13 6,494,691 9,168,229
Obligations under finance leases 10 380,922 494,187
13,618,129 44 530,551
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,188,609 45,150,986
138,800,387 170,139,355

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Ak ecutive ifﬂgr

Director

The notes on pages 13 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

Page 10

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014 to 31

MARCH 2015

Net gains from foreign currency dealings

Other operating income

Sundry income

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income

Finance costs

Flnance Ihcome — net

Loss before income tax

Income tax credit

Notes

15

16

17

18

19

14

Loss and total comprehensive income for the period

Period from 01
January 2014 to

31 March
2015
Rs

47,798,509

5,812,278
139,572

(57,901,488)

2,835,250

(981,398)

(2,297,277)

920,686

(1,376,591)

Period from 01
October 2012 to
31 December
2013

Rs

46,519,211

7,290,004
69,297

(59,174,303)

1,848,190

(1,267,290)

The notes on pages 13 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

Page 12

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014 to 31 MARCH 2015

Period from 01

January 2014

to

31 March

2015
Notes Rs

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (2,297,277)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of furniture, equipment and vehicles 4 1,985,572
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 1,906,064
Gratuity obligations 9 84,000
Interest income 17 (2,835,250)
Interest expense 18 981,398
Furniture and equipment written off 4 598,083
Profit on disposal of vehicles (132,604)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL
CHANGES 289,986
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 4,122,817
(Necrease)/increase in trade and other payahles (28,125,619)
(23,712,816)
Interest received 1,980,818
Interest paid (981,398)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (22,713,396)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of furniture, equipment and vehicles 4 (1,522,199)
Purchase of intangible assets 5 (2,207,560)
Treasury bills redeemed 6 22,000,000
Purchase of treasury bills 6 (22,564,170)
Proceeds from sale of vehicles 485,000
Net cash used in investing activities (3,808,929)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance lease principal payments (608,425)
Net cash used in financing activities (608,425)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash (27,130,750)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the period 102,012,760
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 13 74,882,010

Period from 01

October 2012
to

31 December
2013

Rs

(4,714,891)

2,419,239
3,668,755
7,000
(1,848,190)
1,267,290
2,122,694

2,921,897

(5,117,055)
11,005,128

8,810,270
1,108,110
(1,267,290)

8,651,090

(782,325)

22,000,000
(21,479,260)
235,000

8,024,135

93,988,625

The notes on pages 13 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 MARCH 2015

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company Limited (the “Company”) is a private company limited
by shares incorporated in Mauritius. The registered office is situated at Ground Floor, Anglo Mauritius

House, 4 Intendence Street, Port Louis.

The main activity of the Company is to deal in foreign exchange.
2  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS’). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
The financial statements are presented in Mauritian Rupee (‘Rs’).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexily, or areas where assumptlons and estimates are significant to the financial statements are

discloscd in Note 3,

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

a) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company

The llowing slandards have been adopted by the Lompahy for the tirst time tor the tinancial year
beginning on or after 01 January 2014:

Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments:Presentation’ on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. This amendment clarifies that the right of get-off must not be contingent on a future event. it
must also be legally enlorceable lor all counterparties in the normal course of business, das well as in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment also considers settlement
mechanisms. The amendment did not have a significant effect on the Company’s financial

statements.

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, on the recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUs

which had been included in IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS 13.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy if that liability is within the
scope of IAS 37 ‘Provisions’. The interpretation addresses what the obligating event is that gives rise
to pay a levy and when a liability should be recognised. The Company is not currently subjected to
significant levies so the impact on the Company’s financial statements is not material.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective for the financial year beginning
on 01 January 2014 are not material to the Company'’s financial statements.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 MARCH 2015

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

b) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 01 January 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on financial statements of
the Company, except the following set out below:

[FRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It
replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income ("“OCI") and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of classification
depends on the entity’'s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or
loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair valué in OCl without recycling.
There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and measurement
except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic
relationship between the hedged item and hedging instrument and for the 'hedged ratio’ to be the
same as the one management actually use for risk management purposes. Contemporaneous
documentation is still required but is different to that currently prepared under 1AS 39. The standard is
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.
The Campany is yet tn assess IFRS @'s fijll impact,

ITRS 15, ‘NRevenue from contracts with customers' deals wilh tevenue 1ecognition and establishes
principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers.
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability
to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18
‘Revenue’ and IAS 11 ‘Construction contracts’ and related interpretations. The standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2017 and earlier application is permitted. The
Company Is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Foreign currency translation

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in ‘Mauritian Rupee’ (Rs), which is the Company’s functional currency.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation when items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.  All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other operating income’.

Furniture, equipment and vehicles

Furniture, equipment and vehicles are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial
poriod in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of thc assets to their
rcaidual values over their estimatad useful lives, as follows:

Office aquipmeant A T75%
Computer equipment: 25.00%
Furniture and fittings: 6.33%
Motor vehicles: 15.00%

Depreciation is provided in full in the month of addition and in respect of assets written off and disposed,
up to the month of write off and disposal.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are included in profit or loss.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets — Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (4

years).

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the company are recognised as intangible assets when the

following criteria are met:
e it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

¢ management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
e there is an ability to use or sell the software product;
e it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic

benefits,
e adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or

sell the software product are available; and
e the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably

measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditure that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in

a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful
lives which do not exceed 4 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assels that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generaling units). Prior impairments of non-financial assete other than goodwill aro roviowod for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets depending on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
The Company only holds held to maturity investments and loans and receivables as financial assets.

Held to maturity investments

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities other than those that meet the definition of loans and receivables that
thc Company's m&nayeimenl lias Ui pusilive inlentivin and ablilly to Hold 1o matufity, other than:

- Those that the Company upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through income
- Those that the Company designates as available-for-sale, and
- Those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Interest on held-to-maturity investments are included in the statement of comprehensive income and
reported within ‘finance income’. In the case of an impairment, it is reported as deduction for the
carrying value of an investment and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as “Net
gains/(losses) on investment securities®. Held-to-maturity investments are treasury bills. These
assets are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
affactive interest melliod, less pruvision [ur impairment.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Loans and recejvables

Loans and receivables are non-derlvative flnancial assets with tixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The
Company’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash

equivalents’ in the statement of financial position.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or losses are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in profit or loss . Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. L.oans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss .
If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair value using an

observable market price.

I', In a sUbsedUent period, the amount ot the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
and bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown separately

within current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income lax charge is calcutated on the basls of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period in the country where the company operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted hy the end of the reparting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilites and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net hasis.

Employee benefits

Gratuity obligations

The Company does not operate a pension scheme for its employees. Employees are entitled to a
gratuity payment on retirement under the terms of the Employment Rights Act 2008. Accordingly the
Company's qualified actuary has determined for the gratuity obligations in line with the requirements
of the Employment Rights Act 2008 at the end of the reporting period and the Company has booked
this obligation in the statement of financial position.

The present value of retirement benefits under The Employment Rights Act 2008 is recognised in the
statement of financial position as a non-current liability. The rate used to discount the retirement
benefit is assumed to be the same as that which reflects corporate government bonds.

Typically gratuity obligations define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and

compeinsaliorn.

i he liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of gratuity obligations is the
present value of the gratuity obligations at the end of the reporting period. The gratuity obligations is
calculated annually by independent actuaries. The present value of the gratuity obligations is
dvdenmiineal by dincounting the aytimatad future cash flows using mleiesl valees of high-qualiy
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss under administrative expenses, unless
the changes are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the
vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

vesting period.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage

voluntary redundancy.

Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

Employee benefits include wages, salaries, social security contributions, travelling and insurance.
These costs are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entittement to annual leave and other benefits are supposed to be recognised when they
accrue fo the employees. However the Company encourages all employees to take all their annual
leave and other benefits during the year and hence there is no provision required.

Provisions

Provisinns for restricturing costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Company has a preaent
leyal ur cunsliuclive obligation as a result of past events; It is probable that an outtlow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihvud lhat an outflow will be required in
selllemenl is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognhised as interest expense

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services provided, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The
Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Company’s activities, as described below. The Company bases its estimate of return
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.
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2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Sale of foreign currency

Dealings in foreign exchange are recognised on customer acceptance. Gains and losses arising on
dealing in foreign currencies are recognised on a net basis.

Fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

The Company leases vehicles. Leases of vehicles where the Company has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long term payables. The interest element of
the finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The vehicles acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholder.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, investment in treasury bills, obligations under finance
leases and trade and other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the
individua!l policy statements associated with each item. Disclosures about financial instruments to which

the Company is a party are provided in Note 21.
3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Gratuity obligations

lhe present value of the gratuity obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on
an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(incume) Tor penslons Include the dlscount rate. Any changes In these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations. The Company’s actuary determines the appropiiale discount
rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present
value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company’s actuary considers the interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominatod in the currcnoy in which the benefits will be paid and
that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related gratuity obligation.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions.
Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and unused {ax credits to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred income tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with

future tax planning strategies.
Depreciation and amortisation rates

The Company depreciates or amortises its assets over their estimated useful lives. The estimation of
useful lives is based on historical performance and expectation about future use and requires

significant degree of judgement.
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4 FURNITURE, EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES

At 31 March 2015

COST

At 01 January 2014
Additions

Assets written off
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

DEPRECIATION

At 01 January 2014
Charge for the period
Assetls written off
Disposal adjustment

At 31 March 2015

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 March 2015

At 31 December 2013

COST

At 01 October 2012
Additions

Assets written off

At 31 December 2013

DEPRECIATION

At 01 October 2012
Charge for the period
Assets written off

At 31 December 2013

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 December 2013

At 31 March 2015, motor

Office Computer Furniture Motor
equipment equipment and fittings vehicles Total
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs
7,388,413 3,896,142 7,301,325 2,508,323 21,094,203
186,059 732,887 384,458 1,580,000 2,883,404
(603,936) (879,077) (249,320) - (1,732,333)
- - - (1,658,328) (1,658,328)
6,970,536 3,749,952 7,436,463 2,429,995 20,586,946
2,165,759 3,617,480 1,923,480 1,186,245 8,892,964
693,861 264,386 553,723 473,602 1,985,572
{195,084) (834,735) (104,431) - (1,134,250)
- - - (1,305,932) (1,305,932)
2,664,536 3,047,131 2,372,772 353,915 8,438,354
4,306,000 702,821 5,063,691 2,076,080 12,148,592
9,230,691 6,348,446 9,546,936 3,172,321 28,298,394
77,565 176,111 528,649 - 782,325
(1,919,843) (2,628,415) (2,774,260) (663,998) (7,986,516)
7,388,413 3,896,142 7,301,325 2,508,323 21,094,203
2,437,789 5,755,920 2,728,104 1,180,734 12,102,547
623,168 484,412 783,249 528,410 2,419,239
(895,198) (2,622,852) (1,587,873) (522,899) (5,628,822)
2,165,759 3,617,480 1,923,480 1,186,245 8,892,964
5,222,654 278,662 5,377,845 1,322,078 12,201,239

vehicles acquired under finance

leases had a net

book value of

Rs 2,076,080 ( 31 December 2013: Rs 1,322,078). The Company leases various vehicles under non cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are up to 5 years and ownership of the asset lies within the

Company.
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5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 31 March 2015
COST

At 01 January 2014
Addition

At 31 March 2015

AMORTISATION

At 01 January 2014
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2015

NET BOOK VALUES

At 31 March 2015

At 31 December 2013
COST

At 01 October 2012

Disposal

At 31 Decembher 2013

AMORTISATION
At 01 October 2012
Disposal

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2013

NET BOOK VALUES

At 31 December 2013

Computer Assetin
software progress Total
Rs Rs Rs
14,940,689 - 14,940,689
52,101 2,155,459 2,207,560
14,992,790 2,155,459 17,148,249
12,628,349 - 12,628,349
1,906,064 - 1906,064
14,534,413 - 14,534,413
458,377 2,155,459 2,613,836
15,114,777 - 15,114,777
(174,088) - (174,088)
14,940,689 - 14,940,689
9,133,682 - 9,133,682
(174,088) - (174,088)
3,668,755 - 3,668,755
12,628,349 - 12,628,349
2,312,340 - 2,312,340
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6 INVESTMENT IN TREASURY BILLS

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Unquoted Rs Rs
At start of period 21,479,260 21,259,920
Additions during the period 22,564,170 21,479,260
Redeemed during the period (22,000,000) (22,000,000)
Interest 854,432 740,080
At end of period 22,897,862 21,479,260

investment relates to purchase of Government of Mauritius Treasury Bills dated 18 July 2014, with
face value of Rs 23,000,000 (yield 2.10% p.a.), which will mature on 19 June 2015. The directors
have valued the unquoted investment at amortised cost.

7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Amounts due from related parties (Note 20) 14,602,335 18,631,651
Rental and other deposits 1,412,662 1,834,101
Other receivables and prepayments 2,613,599 2,285,661
18,628,596 22,751,413

There are no trade receivables as Ui Cutmpany dues nol lrade on credlt with its customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is equal to the carrying value
of each class of trade and other receivables mentioned above.

Amounts receivable from related companies contain no provision for impairment as they are fully
performing and the directors consider that these are fully recoverable.

Trade and other receivables do not contain impaired-assets.

8 STATED CAPITAL

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

1,000,000 shares at Rs 100 each 100,000,000 100,000,000

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries a right to vote but no right to fixed
income
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9 GRATUITY OBLIGATIONS

Under the Employment Rights Act 2008

The Company has recognised a gratuity obligation of Rs 229,000 (2013: Rs 145,000) in the statement
of financial position in respect of any retirement gratuities that are expected to be paid out of the
Company’s cash flow to its employees as per the Employment Rights Act 2008 and as determined by

the Company’s actuary.

Reconciliation of gratuity obligations
At start of period
Amount recognised in profit or loss

At end of period

Reconciliation of present value of gratuity obligations
At start of period

Current service cost

Interest expense

Liability experience (gain)/loss

Liability (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions

At end of period

Components of amount recognised in profit or loss
Current service cost
Net interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset)

Total

Principal assumptions used at end of period
Discount rate

Rate of salary increases

Average retirement age (ARA)

Sensitivity Analysis on gratuity obligations at end of period

Increase due to 1% decrease in discount rate
Decrease due to 1% increase in discount rate

31 March
2015

Rs

145,000
84,000

145,000
57,000
13,000

(33,000)
47,000

31 December
2013

Rs

138,000
29,000
15,000

(87,000)
50,000

29,000
15,000

32,000
25,000
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10 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Leasing arrangement

Finance leases relate to motor vehicles with lease terms of 5 years. The Company has options to
purchase the vehicles for a nominal amount at the conclusion of the lease agreement. The Company's

obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' title to the leased assets.

Fair value

The fair value of the finance lease liabilities is approximately equal to their carrying amount as the
effect of discounting is not significant.

Finance lease liabilities

Within one year
Between 2 and 5 years

Less:
Future finance charges

Minimum lease payments

31 March 31 December

2015
Rs

511,200
1,555,410

2,066,610

(344,209)

11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The movernent in deferred income tax during the period is as follows:

At start of period

Cradited to profit or loss (Nule 14)
Under-provision of deferred tax in prior years (Note 14)

At end of period

31 March

2015
Rs

380,922
1,341,480

31 March
2015
Rs

214114
920,686

Present value of minimum lease

Payments

31 December

2013
Rs

494,187
475,435

31 December
2013
Rs

102,399
581,769
(470,054)
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11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities and deferred tax (credit)/charge in the statement of comprehensive
income are attributable to the following items:

(Over)/under
{Charge)/credit provision of deferred
to profit or tax liabilities/(assets) At 31 March

At 01 January loss (Note 14) in prior year 2015
2014 {Note 14)
Rs Rs Rs Rs

Accelerated capilal
allowances (458,514) (257,133) (20,833) (736,480)
Gratuity obligations 24,649 14,280 - 38,929
Accumulated tax losses 647,979 981,108 203,264 1,832,351
Deferred tax assets 214,114 738,255 182,431 1,134,800

12 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Trade payables 2,270,627 16,485,170
Amount payable to relaled parlies (Note 20) 2,155,459 14,855,000
Accruals and other payables 2,316,430 3,527,965
6,742,516 34,868,135

The trade payahles are in respect of telegraphic trancfer transactiona and amounts due lu muriey
gram, in respect of normal business recurring expenses. Telegraphic transfers are settled on the day
following the transaction and suppliers are settled within 30 to 45 days of credit facility granted by the
supplier. The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit timeframe.

The amount payable to one related party is denominated in Indian Rupees and approximates its fair
value as the effect of discounting is not significant. The amount payable to related party is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.
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13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Local currency

Foreign currency

Cash in hand
Local currency

Foreign currency

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdraft — unsecured

14 INCOME TAX (ASSET)/LIABILITY

(a) Income tax credit

Under provision of deferred income tax asset in prior

year (Note 11)

Deferred income tax credit (Note 11)

31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
60,736,111 59,001,176
2,615,283 13,506,468
11,863,051 25,161,572
6,162,256 13,511,773
81,376,701 111,180,989
(6,494,691) (9,168,229)
74,882,010 102,012,760
31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
- (470,054)

920,686 581,769
920,686 111,715

(b) The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the basic tax rate of the Company as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 17% (2013: 17%)

Adjustments for:-
Non-tax deductible expenses
Non-tax deductible expense prior year but allowable in current period
Under provision of deferred tax asset in prior year (Note 11)

Income tax credit for the year

The expiry dates of the accumulated tax losses are as follows:

31 March 2019
31 March 2020

Period ended

Period ended

31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
(2,297,277) (4,714,891)
(390,537) (801,531)
- 219,762
(347,718) -
(182,431) 470,054
(920,686) (111,715)
5,007,312

5,735,231
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15 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Income on currency swaps and cross

Income from pick-up and delivery of foreign

currencies to bank

Income on traveller's cheques & telegraphic transfers

Foreign Exchange (losses)/gains - net
Commission received on MoneyGram

16  SUNDRY INCONE

Miscellaneous income _
Income received on lost baggage service

17  FINANCE INCOME

Bank interest income
Interest received on treasury bills

18 FINANCE COSTS

Finance charges
Interest on bank overdrafts
Interest other

Period ended
31 March

2015
Rs

5,869
1,528,451

914,091
(2,207,784)
5,571,651

Period ended
31 March

2015
Rs

139,572

Period ended
31 March

2015
Rs

2,163,119
672,131

Period ended
31 March

2015
Rs

79,072
884,722
17,604

Period ended
31 December
2013

Rs
37,444
1,326,427

800,240
253,188
4,872,705

Period ended
31 December
2013

Rs

Period ended
3’1 December
2013

Rs

1,075,326
772,864

1,848,190

Rk o T T TR,

Period ended
31 NDecember
2013

Rs

150,636
1,091,771
24,883



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) OPERATIONS COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCI1 2015

Page 32

19 LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Period ended

31 March
2015
Rs

(a) Net loss before income tax expense is arrived at

after charging
Depreciation 1,985,572
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,906,064
Operating lease rentals 11,658,791
Staff costs (Note 19 (b)) 24,001,086
{b) Staff costs is analysed as follows:

Salaries and allowances 19,569,898
Social security costs 1,110,359
Other employee benefits 3,320,829
24,001,086
Number of employees at year ~ end 55

20 RLCLATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Period ended
31 December
2013

Rs

2,419,239
3,668,755
9,458,459
22,505,093

19,548,225
1,012,976
1,943,892

Relaled parties are entliles with comman direct ar indirect sharehnlders and/or directors, Partiee aro
considered to be related only in one party has the ability to control the cther parly vl exeicise

significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

31 March
2015
Rs
Amaunt due fram related parties
(i) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holdings Company Limited
At start of period 3,783,641
Amount repaid by the related party (1,350,760)
Expenses paid on behalf of the related party 635,690
At end of period 3,068,571
(i) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd
At start of period 13,727,668
Amount repaid by related party {(5,000,000)
Expenses paid on behalf of the related party 1,039,419
9,767,087

At end of period

31 December
2013
Rs

3,227,419

9,674,421

4,053,247
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20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Travel Ltd

At start of period
Expenses paid on behalf of the related party
At end of period

Total amount receivable from related parties

Amount due to related parties

(iv) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holdings Company Limited
At start of period

Exchange differences

Repayment

At end of period

(v) Thomas Cook (India) Limited

At start of period
Expenses paid on behalf of the Company
Repayment

At end of period

Total amount payable to related parties

31 March
2015
Rs

1,120,342
646,335

31 March
2015
Rs

14,855,000
1,045,000
(15,900,000)

2,313,358
(157,899)

2,155,459

31 December
2013
Rs

867,050
253,292

31 December
2013
Rs

14,730,000
125,000

14,855,000

258,836

(258,836)

14,855,000

The amounts receivable from/payable to related parties are unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand and approximate their fair values.
Sales of foreign currencies
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd

Purchase of foreign currencies

Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd

Compensation to key management personnel

Period ended

Period ended

31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
3,700,853 3,627,816
56,983,830 34,076,867
6,668,077 6,227,687
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21  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by finance function under policies approved by the board of directors.
The board provides guidance for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and
non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from period ended 31 December 2013.

.The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes bank overdrafts and obilgations
under finance leases offset by cash and cash equivalents and equity comprising issued capital, and
retained earnings.

Fair values

The carrying amounte of the Company’s financial agacls und liabilities are assuined lu approximate
their fair values.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash in bank and at hand

Held to maturity
Investment in Treasury Bills

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Trade and other payables
Obligations under finance leases
Bank overdraft

31 March 31 December
2015 2013

Rs Rs
15,550,234 18,631,651
81,376,701 111,180,989
96,926,935 129,812,640
22,897,862 21,479,260
119,824,797 151,291,900
6,742,516 34,868,135
1,722,402 969,622
6,494,691 9,168,229
14,969,609 45,005,986
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21  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange rate of the Mauritian rupee relative to the
currencies listed below may change in a manner which has a material effect on the reported values of

its assets and liabilities.

The Currency profile of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities is summarised below:

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2015 2013 2015 2013
Rs Rs Rs Rs
Mauritian Rupee 107,439,249 120,256,842 6,309,459 6,109,151
United States Dollar 6,475,920 10,841,313 1,466,416 15,866,764
Euro 4,617,471 17,018,049 5,028,275 22,908,571
Great Britain Pound 677,973 1,766,589 - -
Others 614,184 1,409,107 2,155,459 121,500
119,824,797 151,291,900 14,959,609 45,005,986

The Company is mainly exposed to Euro, Great Britain Pound and United States Dollar.

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the Mauritian
Rupee against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only vulslunding foreign currancy denominated 1munelary ilems and adjusts their transiation
at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates a
decrease in profit where the Mauritian Rupee strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a
10% weakening of the Mauritian Rupee against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below would be positive.

Impact of 10% appreciation of the Mauritian Rupee against the relevant currencies:

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Euro 41,080 589,052
Great Britain Pound 67,797 176,659
United States Dollar 500,950 502,545

I he ahove is mainly attributahle to the Company's exposure outetanding on receivables and exposure
on cash and cash equivalents. In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as period year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the period.
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The Company's risk is concentrated to the amounts due by related companies and investment in
Treasury Bills. The Company does not engage into credit sale so that the credit risk on trade
receivables is virtually inexistent.

Interest rate risk

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for the
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company’'s loss for the period ended 31 March 2015 would increase/decrease by
Rs 357,292 (31 December 2013: Rs 195,856). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable rate on overdratt tacilities.

Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking faclilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial

assefs and liabilitioo.

The maturity profile of the financial instruments is summarised as follows:

31 March 2015 Botween
Within 1 year 2-5 years Total
Rs Rs Rs
6,742,516 - 6,742,516

Trade and other payables

Bank overdraft 6,494,691 - 6,494,691
Obligations under finance lease 511,200 1,555,410 2,066,610
13,748,407 1,555,410 15,303,817

31 December 2013
Trade and other payables 34,868,135 - 34,868,136
Bank overdraft 9,168,229 - 9,168,229
Obligations under finance lease 563,560 524,418 1,087,978
524,418 45,124,342

T Y e e
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22 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company does not own any property and has entered into operating leases for office space and
sales outlets for a period between 3 to 10 years. The rentals are subject to an annual increase,
generally not exceeding 5%. The Company does not have an option to purchase the property on the

expiry of the lease period.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease arrangement
are as follows:

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Not later than 1 year 6,695,992 7,608,159
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,153,163 7,139,416
More than 5 years 423,500 495,000
9,272,655 15,242,575

23  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2015, there were contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees in the ordinary course of
business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise. At 31 March 2015, bank
guarantees amounted to Rs 60,000 (2013 — Rs Nil).

24 HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING CONMPANY

The Company's immediate holding company, Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited
holds 100 % shares of the Company. Thomas Cook (India) Limited, a Company incorporated in India,
holds 100% shares of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited.

Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited ("Fairbridge"), a subsidiary of Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited
(the ‘ultimate parent’), Canada, held 185,653,725 equity shares of INR 1/- each corresponding to
74.96% stake in Thomas Cook (India) Limited as on 31st December, 2013. As at the fifteen months
ended 31st March, 2015, the Fairfax Group (including Fairbridge and its affiliates) holds 203,923,725
equity shares of INR 1/- each corresponding to 74.77% stake in Thomas Cook (India) Limited.
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THOMAS COOK {MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

ANNUAL REPORT

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period from O1 January 2014 to 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the Company is that of a general sales agent.
REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The loss for the period amounted to Rs 198,523 (period ended 31 December 2013 - loss of
Rs 207,522). The directors have not declared any dividends during the period ended 31 March
2015 (period ended 31 December 2013: Rs NiL).

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PERIOD

Comparative results refer to the period from 01 October 2012 to 31 December 2013, whereas
the current period results refer to the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 March 2015. The
Company has changed its financial year end to 31 March 2015. The reporting year end of the
Company’s intermediate parent, Thomas Cook (India) Limited, has changed from 31 December
to 31 March. The Company has therefore aligned its reporting year end with that of its
intermediate parent to facilitate consolidation at the intermediate parent’s level.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2015 are set out on
pages 7 to 22. The auditor’s report on these financial statements is on pages 5 and 6.

DIRCCTONS

The list of directors of the Company who held office during the period is set out on page 1.
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which

present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently;
make judgements and astimates that are reasonable and prudent,

° state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures, disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepdie Lhe linancial slalements on Lhe going cornicern basis unless It Is Inapproprlate 10

presiime that the Company will continiie in husinnss.

The directors confirm that they have complicd with the abovce rcquircments in preparing the
financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Mauritian Companies Act 2001. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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ANNUAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Page 3

The directors do not hold any interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance or loans existed during the period under review between the Company

and its Directors.

DONATIONS

The Company made donations of Rs NIL during the period ended 31 March 2015 {period ended

31 December 2013 — Rs NIL).

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION

During the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 March 2015, remuneration paid to the directors by

the Company are as follows:
Period from 01

January 2014

Period from O1
October 2012

to to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Directors’ remuneration - Sitting Fee NiL 30,000
FEES PAID TO AUDITOR
The fees, excluding VAT charged by the auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for audit and other
services, were;
Period from Period from
01 January 01 October
2014 2012
to to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Audil lees 70,000 70,000
QOther services 15,750 15,750
85,750 85,750

AlLIDITOR

The auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has indicated its willingness to continue in office and will

be automatically re-appointed at the next Annual Meeting.

May (Q 7 2015

Authorised for issue by the Board ctors on

and signed on its behalf by:

} DIRECTORS

AN
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15 MONTHS ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

In our capacity as Company Secretary, we hereby certify, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, that Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Travel Limited has filed with the Registrar
of Companies, for the financial period ended 31 March 2015, all such returns as are
required of the Company under The Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and that all such

returns are true, correct and up to date.

. -
EXECUTIVE SERVICES LIMITED
Per Ah Man WONG TOO YAN
Secretary

Date: May () 7 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Travel Ltd

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Travel Ltd (the “Company”) on
pages 7 to 21 which comprise the statement of financial position at 31 March 2015 and the statements
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period from 01 January 2014 to 31
March 2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with
the requirements of the Mauritian Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 18 CyberCity, Ebéne, Réduit 72201, Republic of Mauritius
T: +230 404 5000, F:+230 404 5088/89, www.pwec.com/mu
Business Registration Number : FO7000530

PricewaterhouseCoopers is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Travel Ltd (Continued)

Report on the Financial Statements (Continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 7 to 21 give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company at 31 March 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with
the Mauritian Companies Act 2001.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Mauritian Companies Act 2001 requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to
you on the following matters. We confirm that:

(a)  we have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditor
and tax advisor;

(L)  we have oblained all the Information and explanations we have required; and

(¢)  in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears
from our examination of those records.

TﬂljricewaterhouseCoopers

11 May 2015

Mushtaq Oosman, licensed by FRC
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
ASSETS
Current assets
Trade and other receivables {Note 3) 838,874 828,521
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) 108,659 305,978
Total current assets 947,533 1,134,499
Total assets Rs 947,533 1,134,499
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owner
Stated capital (Note 5) 1,310,000 1,310,000
Accumulated losses (2,290,144) {2,091,621)
Total equity {980,144) {781,621)
Current hiabilities
Trado and othcr payablca (Note G) 1,927,677 1,916,120
Total equity and liabilities Rs 947,533 1,134,499

Name of directors

The notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014

TO 31 MARCH 2015

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance income (Note 7)

Loss before income tax

Income tax (Note 8)

Lass far the periad {Nnte 9}

Other comprehensive income

Lyss und total camprahuansive
income for the period

The notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rs

Period from 01
January 2014

Period from 01
October 2012

to to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
(200,967) (209,139)
(200,967) (209,139)
2,444 1,617
(198,523) (207,522)
(108,522) {207,022)
{(198,523) (207,522)




THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01 JANUARY 2014

TO 31 MARCH 2015

Page 9

At 01 October 2012
Loss and total comprehensive
income for the period

At 31 December 2013
Loss and total comprehensive
income for the period

At 31 March 2015 Rs

The notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Stated Accumulated Total
capital losses equity

Rs Rs Rs
1,310,000 (1,884,099) {674,099)
- {207,522) (207,522)
1,310,000 (2,091,621) (781,621}
- {198,523) {198,523)
1,310,000 {2,290,144) (980,144)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD FRONM 01 JANUARY 2014

TO 31 MIARCH 2015
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Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Cash flow from operations before working
capital changes

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Net cash (used in)/from operations

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Net cash from investing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the

period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Kepresented by:-
Cash at bank

Period from 01
January 2014

Period from 01
October 2012

to to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
(198,523) (207,522)
(2,444) (1,617)
(200,967) (209,139)
(10,353) (10,756)
11,557 363,679
(199,763) 143,784
2,444 1,617
2,444 1,617
(197,319) 145,401
305,978 160,577
Rs 108,659 305,978
Rs 108,659 305,978

The notes on pages 11 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Travel Ltd (the “Company”) is a private company limited by shares
incorporated and domiciled in Mauritius. The registered office is situated at Ground Floor, Anglo
Mauritius House, 4 Intendence Street, Port Louis.

The main activity of the Company is that of a general sales agent.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS’). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention. The financial statements are presented in Mauritian rupee.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. At 31 March 2015, the directors are of
opinion that there were no areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the preparation of these financial
statements.

Going concern

The Company is in a net liability and net current liabilities positions of Rs 980,144 at 31 March
2015 (31 December 2013 — Rs 781,621). The intermediate parent, Thomas Cook (India) Ltd has
confirmed its intention to provide continuing financial support to the Company so as to enable
the Company to continue its operations in the foreseeable future and will provide financial
support so that the Company meets the financing of its liabilities as they fall due. Consequently,
the directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

{al New and amended standards adopted by the Company

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial
period beginning on or after 01 January 2014 that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Company's financial statements.

{b) New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after January,01 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these
financial statements as none of these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial
statements of the Company, except the following set out below:
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THOMAS COOK {MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010.
It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The determination is
made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The
main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part
of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The
Company has assessed the impact of IFRS 9 and believes that it would not have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Foreign currency translation

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in ‘Mauritian Rupee’ (Rs), which is the Company’s functional

Clrrency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are Lanslaled into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except when deferred in other comprehensive
income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Financial assets

Classificarion
The Company classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables. The classificatinn depends
on the purpose tor which the tinancial assets were acquired. The directors determine the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for
mialuilies yrealer than 12 months after the reporting period. I hese are classitied as non-current
assets. The Company’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets {Continued)
Recognition and measurement

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

QOffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost .
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or eeonnmir ronditions that corrolata with dofaultn.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Company may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the denrrasp nan he
related oblectlvely to an event occurring atter the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED}

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less.

Stated capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in olher
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period in the country where the Company
operates and generate taxable income. The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
duthorltes.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising

hethween the tax bacou of ooooto and liabilitios and their carrying ammuvunls in the Thiaielal
atatomanta. ownrwnr, deforred nooms Las habililiws are 1ol tecoyileod I Uigy arlde from the
initial rosognition of goodwills deferrad infnome faa i~ vt aveanbel for iF 1 arleoe from Initia

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combinalion that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates {(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.



Page 15

THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances

on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflents current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due tq
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for services provided, stated net of discounts, returns and value added
taxes. The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each ol the Company’s actlvities, as described below. I'he Company
bases its estimate of return on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of air tickets

Fees and commissions on air tickets sold by the Company are recognised when the service has
been provided. Commissions earned as the general sales agent of airline operators are
recognised on the basis of the revenue derived by the airline operator from all ticket sales made

in Mauritius.

Fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholder is recognised as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholder.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis. All expenses are charged to profit or loss.

Comparative figures

The Company has changed its accounting year end to 31 March 2015. The current year's
results covers the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 March 2015 while the comparative
results cover the year ended from 01 October 2012 to 31 December 2013.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include trade and other

receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables. The particular recognition
methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Disclosures about financial insliumenls Lo which the Company is a party are provided in Note 11.

3 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLEE
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Trade receivables _ - 53,050
Less: Provision tor doubttul debts - {63,050)
Other receivables 824,499 813,493
Prepayments 14,375 15,028
Ra 838,874 828,521

All rareivables are denominated in Mauritian Rupoo, which i3 the functional cunency ol U
Company.

Other receivables comprise input VAT receivables of Rs 824,499 (31 December 2013:
Rs 813,493), which is considered to be fully recoverable from the authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED})

4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Cash at bank Rs 108,659 305,978
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank.
5 STATED CAPITAL
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Stated capital
Issued and fully paid:
13,100 Ordinary shares of Rs100 each Rs 1,310,000 1,310,000

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries a right to vote but no right to fixed
income.

6 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Amount due to related parties (Note 10) 1,766,677 1,770,945
Accruals and other payables 161,000 145,175
Rs 1,927,677 1,916,120

The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid
within the credit timeframe.

7 FINANCE INCOME
Periad fram Q1 Perind from 01
January 2014 October 2012
to to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs

Interest income from cash at bank Rs 2,444 1,617
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THOMAS COOK {MAURITIUS) TRAVEL LTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

8 INCOME TAX

Income tax expense is calculated at the rate of 17%, including 2% CSR tax (2013: 17%) on the
profit for the year as adjusted for income tax purposes. However, no provision has been made
in the financial statements as the Company has accumulated tax losses available for offsetting in
future.
The tax on the Company's loss before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the basic tax rate of the Company as follows:
Period from 01 Period from 01
January 2014  October 2012

to to

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Rs Rs

Loss before income tax Rs (198,523) (207,522)

Tax calculated at a rate of 17% (2013: 17%) (33,749) (35,279)

Adjustments for:-

Non tax allowable expenses 8,598 -

Deferred income tax asset on tax losses not
recognised 25,151 35,279
Income tax expense for the period Rs - -

The Company has accumulated tax losses of Rs 525,032 (31 December 2013: Rs 377,084)
with the following expiry dates:

Rs

30 September 2017 169,562
31 December 2018 207,522
31 March 2020 147,948
Rs 525,032

The Company has not recognised deferred income tax assets of Rs 89,255 (2013: Rs 64,104)
‘arising on accumulated tax losses of Rs 525,032 (2013: Rs 377,084) as the directors believe
that the Company will not generate sufficient taxable profits in the future.

9 LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

Period from 01 Period from 01
January 2014 October 2012

to to
31 March 31 December
2015 2013
Rs Rs

Net loss is arrived at after charging

Professional services:

Audit fees 70,000 70,000
Taxation services 15,750 15,750
Secretarial services 34,653 16,613
Other professional services 50,000 50,000

Directors’ fees - 30,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are entities with common direct or indirect shareholders and/or directors. Parties
are considered to be related only if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Amount due to related parties: Rs Rs
(1) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd (Fellow

Subsidiary)

At 01 January / O1 October 650,602 596,310

Receipts during the year - 54,292

Payments during the year (650,602) -

At 31 March / 31 December Rs - 650,602
(ii) Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company Limited

{ Fellow Subsidiary)

At 01 January / 01 October 1,120,343 867,050

Receipts during the year 646,334 253,293

At 31 March / 31 December Rs 1,766,677 1,120,343

Total amount due to related parties (Note 6) Rs 1,766,677 1,770,945

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Compensation of key management personnel

Directors’ fees of Rs Nil (period ended 31 December 2013: Rs 30,000) have been incurred by
the Company for the period ended 31 March 2015 in relation to directorship services rendered

by the directors.

11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities may expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Company’s financial performance. The directors believe that since the Company is dormant, the
exposure to the above mentioned financial risks is minimal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk management is carried out by finance function under policies approved by the board of
directors.

{i) Market risk
(a)  Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk, as defined in IFRS 7, arises as the value of future transactions, recognised
monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. At 31 March 2015 and 31 December 2013, all the
Company’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities were denominated in Mauritian rupees and
hence, the Company was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of markets
interest rates on the fair value of financial assets and liabilities and future cash flow. The
Company holds a limited amount of cash and cash equivalents that expose the Company to cash
flow interest rate risk. However, the impact is not significant.

{c)  Price risk
The Company is not exposed to price risk.
(if) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company’s credit risk arises mainly on its cash
balances. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of
its cash at bank, as stated on the statement of financial position. Cash fransactions are limited
to high credit quality of financial institutions and at 31 March 2015, the Company’s cash was

placed with a reputable bank.
fiif)  Liquidity risk
The Company is exposed to liquidity risk, which is the risk that the Company is unable to meet

its payment obligations, associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due. The table
below represents the undiscounted amounts as the effect of discounting is not material.

31 March 31 December

2015 2013

Less than Less than

1 year 1 year

Rs Rs

Trade and other payables Rs 1,927,677 1,916,120

The Company has recourse to its intermediate parent for its financing requirements. Hence,
liquidity risk is considered as low.

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a
going concern.

The capital structure of the Company consists of stated capital. The accumulated losses have
been funded by related parties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015 (CONTINUED)

11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGENMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their
fair values due to the short-term nature of the balances involved.

Categories of financial instruments

31 March 31December
2015 2013
Rs Rs
Financial assets (Loans and receivables)
Cash at bank Rs 108,659 305,978
Financial liabilities (At amortised cost)
Trade and other payables Rs 1,927,677 1,916,120

12 HOLDING AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Company's immediate holding company, Thomas Cook {Mauritius) Holding Company Limited
holds 100% of the shares of the Company. Thomas Cook ({India) Limited, a Company
incorporated in India, holds 100% of the shares of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company

Limited.

Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited ("Fairbridge™), a subsidiary of Fairfax Financial Holdings
Limited (the "ultimate parent”), Canada, held 185,653,725 equity shares of INR 1/- each
corresponding to 74.96% stake in Thomas Cook (India) Limited as on 31 December 2013. As
at 31 March 2015, the Fairfax Group (including Fairbridge and its affiliates) holds 203,923,725
equity shares of INR 1/- each corresponding to 74.77% stake in Thomas Cook {India) Limited.

13 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND COMPARATIVES

Comparative results refer to the period from 01 October 2012 to 31 December 2013, whereas
the current period results rcfer to the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 March 2015. The
Company has changed its reporting year end to 31 March 2015. The reporting year end of the
Company’s intermediate parent, Thomas Cook (India) Ltd, has changed from 31 December to 31
March. The Company has therefore aligned its reporting year end with that of its intermediate
parent to facilitate consolidation at the intermediate parent’s level.

The comparative amounts for the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity, cash
flows and 1claled 1ules are Lheieluie nul dliectly countiparable.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of

Aravon Services Private Limited
(formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited) (‘the Company’) which comprise the
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of profit and loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement, @
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B S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Aravon Services Private Limited
{formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2015, and its loss and its cash flows
tor the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014, &
H ]
%/,./
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

Aravon Services Private Limited
(formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as at 31 March 2015
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Auditor and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

1i.

Mumbai
13 July 2015

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements— Refer note 26.1 to the financial statements;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 116231 W/ W-100024
A : 7

Shabbir Readymadewala
Partner
Membership No: 100060
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Aravon Services Private Limited
(formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2015

(Referred to in our report of even date)

(1)

(if)

(iin)

(iv)

v
(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification during the year.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedures for the physical verification of inventories followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company
and the nature of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not
material and these have been dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured to or from
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and having
regard to the explanation that purchases of certain items of inventories and fixed assets are
for the Company’s specialized requirements and suitable alternative sources are not
available to obtain comparable quotations, there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to
the purchase of fixed assets and inventories and sale of goods and services. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing
failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control system.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

As informed to us by the Management, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, for any of the
services rendered by the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund,
Empioyees” State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Value added tax,
Labour welfare fund, Profession tax and other material statutory dues have been
generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate

authorities. 4
4



B S R & Associates LLP

Aravon Services Private Limited
(formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2015

(Continued)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of Customs duty, Excise duty and Wealth tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax,
Sales-tax, Service tax, Value added tax, Labour welfare fund, Profession tax and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2015 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable, except for the dues

stated below

Name of the statute Nature of the dues Amount (Rs)) Period to which the
amount relates
Professional Tax Act, Professional tax 80,404 2007-08
1975 Professional tax 102,315 2008-09
Professional tax 8.17¢ 2010-11
Professional Tax 14,573 2011-12
Maharashtra Value Value added tax 58,547 2012-13
Added Tax, 2002
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of

Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax and Value added tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute excepr as

follows:
Name of the Nature of the  Amount Period fo Forum where dispute is
sfatute dues (Rs) which the pending
amount relates

Income-tax Act, Income-tax 6,288,410 2008-09 income Tax Appellate
1961 Tribunal
Income-tax Act, Penalty 5,570,336 2008-09 Commissioner of Income
1961 tax (Appeals)
Maharashtra Penalty 498879 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner of
Value  Added Sales Tax
Tax, 2002

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts

which were required to be transferred to the investor education and protection fund
by the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder. %
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B S R & Associates LLP

Aravon Services Private Limited
(formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2015
(Continued)

(vill)  The accumulated losses of the Company are more than fifiy percent of its net worth. The
Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(ix)  The Company did not have any outstanding dues to any financial institutions, banks or
debenture-holders during the year,

{x) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

(xi)  The Company did not have term loans outstanding during the vear.

(xii}  According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 1 1623§\W/W 100024

%jy e

Shabbir Readymadewala
Mumbai Partner
13 July 2015 Membership No: 100060



Aravon Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Litnited)

Balance sheet
as at 3/st March 2043

(Currency: in Indian Rupees)

Note 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITEIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 4 394,115,570 391,540,570
Reserves and surplus 3 (297,611,581) (291.934.670)
96,503,989 99,605,900
Non-current liabilities
Other long-term tiabilities & - 1,582,188
- 1,582,188

Current liabilities

~d

Short-term borrowings - 11,002,093

Trade payables 1 10,590,512 393334814
Other current lizhilities 9 73,676,800 48,493,897
Short-term provisions f 7.219.568 8.529,917
91,486,880 107,379,388
187.990.869 208,567 476
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
1) Tangible assets I 20,783,309 41,083,846
it) [mangible assests b 1,943,020 398,713
iti) Intangible assets under development {th - 900,565
22,726,329 42,583,124
Deterred tax assets 12 - -
Long-terin loans and advances I3 29,520,406 290911.933
Other non-current assets 14 1,587,653 674,722
31,198,059 10.586.635
Current assets
Inveniones i3 2,911,856 3,792,391
Trade receivables 16 87,120,246 108,070,326
Cash and bank balances I7 19,448,899 2,365,724
Short-term loans and advances I8 13,237,809 12,056,807
Other current assets 19 11,438,471 G.112,189
134,156,481 135.397,697
187,990.86% 208.567 476
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes trom |- 26 fonn an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For B S R & Associates LLP For and behalf of Board of Directors of
Charrered .AICC%HI(IHIS Aravon Services Private Limited
Finj}:v's\,Registra‘ ian No: 116231 \}« W-100024 {Formerly known as Aramark India Private Limited)
5y \ \ T

CIN: U93000MH2007FTC172493

0

N i \\\rﬂ

Ranjit Nair Subrata
Partner Director Direcror
Membership No: 100060 HN: 7086634 DiIN: 02234000
Musmbai Mumbai
Date" L [ate:
o
? CEEE I T td o g

Nupur Sipgh
Secretary
A36306



Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Statement of profit and loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2013

{Currency: Indian Rupees)

Revenue

Revenue trom operations
Other income

Total revenue
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Employee benefits
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Other expenses
Total expenses
Loss before tax
Tax expense:
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
Loss after tax

Basic earnings per equity share of face value of Rs 18 each

Significant accounting policies

Note 31 March 2013 21 March 2014
20 456,674,937 343,145,899
21 24,107,389 1,980,986

480,782,326 345,126,883
22 48,168,323 43768414
23 392,393,921 295414771
24 283,941 481,292
Had&ilb 20,729,374 8,436,107
23 73,808,678 63,690.034
535,384,237 413,790,618
(34,601,911) (68,663,733
{2 - -
(54,601.911) (68.663.733)

26.6 (1.39) (L.77}

3

The accompanying aotes {from 1- 26 form an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached.

For B S R & Associates LL.P

Chartered Accountanis

Firm's Regiswation No: 116231W: W-(00024
‘\‘. i

Shabbir Readymadewala
Puriner
Membership No: 100060

Mumbai
Date: ‘F 3} i IS

10

For and behaif of Board of Directors of
Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerty known as Aramark Indiz Private Limited}

CIN: U93000MH2087FTC172493

K [\he e, -
¢ Drdmbn N
Ranjit Nair Subrata Nag
Director Direcror
DIN: 070860634 DIN: 02233000

Mumbai

P 13 J0L 20

Nupur Singh
Secretry
AJB30E



Aravon Services Private Limited
{(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Prvate Limited)

Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2013

(Currency: [ndian Rupees}

A, Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss) for the year before tax

Adjustments :

Depreciation and amortisation

Liabilities 0 longer required written back
Interest income

Finance costs

Provision for doubtful receivables
Provision for secunity deposit

Bad debts written-off

Loss on sale of fixed assets / discarded {net)

Operating (loss) before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
(Decrease) / increase in provisions
{Decrease) / Increase in trade payables
Increase in other liabilities
Decrease / {increase} in loans and advances
{Increase) in other current assets
Decrease / (increase) in inventory
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables
Cash (used in) / operating activities
Income taxes paid
Net cash (used in) / operating activities (A)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Interest income
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Net cash (used in) / investing activities (B)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from fresh issue of share capital
(Repayment) ¢ proceeds from short term borrowings
Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (See below}

11

31 March 2615

31 March 2014

(54,601,911) (68.663,733)
20,729,374 8.436.107
12,785,.821) ;

(507.362) (2179753
283,941 431,292
11,318.107 3268458
2,578,780 455,000
165.943 .
2,074,518 226,083

(40,744,931) (55.514,76%)
(1,310,349 822,068
(7,283,091) 7478,728
24,095,702 9,879,376

4,523,000 (1,382,174)
{3.210,941) (6,611,799
881,535 (LA13.648)
9,466,030 (43.248,602)

(13,583,044) (89.990.819)
(6,585,232) {5.127.331)

(20.168,296) (93.118,150)
(3,769,310) 127855292,

479,589 242,142
327,226 187,042
(2,962.495) (27.426.108)
51,500,000 93,600,000
(11,002,003) 10.973.337
(283,941) (481.292)
40,213 966 104 092 045
17,083,173 (18.452.214)
2,363,724 20,817.938
19,448,399 2.365.724




Aravon Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Cash flow statement (Continued)
Sor the year ended 31 March 2013

(Currency: [ndian Rupees)

Notes to cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents at the year-end comprise:
Cash in hand
Balance with scheduled banks in

~-- Current accounts

-~ in fixed deposit account with original matarity less than three months

31 March 2015 3% March 2014
627,630 396312
7,654,269 1,769,412
11,167,000 -
19,448,899 2365724

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3 (AS -3} on Cash flow statement prescribed

in the Companies { Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

As per our report of even date attached.

For B 8 R & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 116231 W: W-100024
Py Vo

;!f\‘\\.,_ B

).

Shabbir Readymadewala
Parmer
Membership No: 100060

Mumbai

™13 JuL 2019
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For and behalf of Board of Directors of
Aravon Services Private Limited

{Formeriy known as Aramark [ndia Private Limited)

CIN: L93000MH2687TFTC171493

Ranjit Nair
Director
DIN: 07086634

Mumbiai

13 JuL 2018

Subrata Nag
Director
DING (2234000

Nugpur Singh
Secretary
£36306



Aravon Services Private Limited

{Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2013

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

3.1

3.2

3.3

Background

ARAMARK India Private Limited (ARAMARK' or 'the Company’) was incorporated on 19 July 2007 under the Companies Act, 1956 The
Company is a 106% subsidiary of ARAMARK Corporation, USA ('Ukimate Holding C ompary') and is engaged in rendering integrased food
and facility management services to corporate customers in India. predominantly in the areas of housekeeping services and guest house
Management services.

On 12 February 2015, the existing sharcholders of the Company entered into a share purchase agreement with Quess Corp Limited. Cn 01
April 2013, the existing shareholders transferred alt shares held by them w Quess Corp Limited vide Share Purchase agreement dated 12
February 2015. Consequently, Quess Corp Limited owns 39,4 (1,557 equity shares which constitutes 100% capital of the Company.

On 26 May 2013, the Company received a fresh certificate of incorporation trom Registrar of Companies changing the name of the Company
from Aramark India Private Limited to Aravon Services Private Limited.

Going Concern

As at 31 March 2013, the accumulated losses have substantially eroded the net worth of the Company. However the Company has no
intention of discontinuing its core business of Facility management nor does the Company have any plans that may materialiy affect the
carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities. The Management of the Company believes that the C ompany will be able to continue
to operate as a going concern and meet all its liabilities as they fail due for payment based on its cash flow projections and unconditional
financial support from Quess Cerp Limited. the holding company as on date. Accordingly. these financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis and do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded assets or to amounts and
classification of liabilities that may be necessary, if the Company is unable to continue as a OINg concern.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting and
comply with the Accounting Standards {'AS'y preseribed specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act'), read with Rule 7
of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 und other accounting principles generally
accepted in India (Indian GAAP), to the extent applicabie. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

The Company is a smali and medium sized company (“SMC™) in accordance with the Companies { Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 jssued
by the Cenmral Govermiment in consuRation with National Advisory Committee on Accounting Standards, Accordingly, the Company has
complied with the Accounting Standards as applicable to a Small and Medium Sized Company.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in cenformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India requires management
1o make judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amousnts of assets, labilities, income and expenses and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actua! resuits could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future petiods.

Current - non current classification
All assets and fiabilities are classified into current and non-current,
Assets

An asset is classified as curvent when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itis expected te be realised in. or is intendad for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cvele:

b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

¢} it is expected o be realised within twelve months after the veporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalest unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabtlity for at least twelve monghs after the
reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current. {g

Lt

l -
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Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 31 March 2013

{Currency : Indian Rupees)
3 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
3.3 Cuarrent - non-current classification (Continued)

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the fellowing criteria:

a) Itis expected to be settled in the Company s normal operating cvele:

by it is held primarily for the purpose of being raded;

¢) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d; the Company does not have an unconditional right 1o defer settlement of she liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classitication.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-cuwrrent tinancial liabilities.

All other liabilities are <lassitied as non-current.

Operating cvele

Operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company
has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of currem and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

3.4 Fixed assets and depreciation / amortisation

a Tangible assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation ¢ amortization and impairment, if any. Cost includes purchase
price and other ¢cost attributable to acquisition and installation of the assets.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchasedisold during the period is proportionately charged. The useful life of the assets is assessed based on the
techrical evaluation and internal assessment taking into account nature of asset, estimated usage of asset, operating condition and past history
of replacement. During the year. the Company has revised the estimated usefu] iife of the certain fixed assets. since the management beligve
that these revised useful lives more appropriately retlect the period of economic benefit to be derived from the use of such assets and hence
would result in a more appropriate proportion and presentation of the financial statements. The existing and revised useful lives are as below: -

Asset class Earlier useful life Current useful life
{Years) (Years}
Plant and machinery* 20 years 4 vears
Office equipizent ) years 3 vears
Computers*® 6 vears 4 vears
Furniture and (itinys* 15 vears 4 years
Yehicles 19} vears % years

Had the Company provided for the depreciation on SLM basis using the previously assessed useful lives, the depreciation charge for the year
ended 31 March 2015 would have been lower by Rs.7.629.268. (Refer note 3.14)
* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation carried out by the vendor, the management beligves that the

useful lves as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these
assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part € of Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013,

Leaseheld improvement are amortised over the lower of usetul life of the assets and lease term of the leasehotd premuses on a straightline
basis.

b Intangible assets

Application software purchased, which {s not an integral part of the related hardware, is shown as intangible assets

d amortised on a
straight line basis over its useful life. not exceeding five years, as determined by managemeny |




Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerly known as ARAMARK india Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sfor the year ended 31 March 2013

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

3

3.4

3.6

7
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Fixed assets and depreciation / amortisation (Continued)

Intangible ussets under development

Comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended vse as at the Balance sheet date.
Impairment of assets

In aceordance with AS 28 on “Impairment of Assets” as prescribed in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, read with Rule 7
of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 where there is an indication of impairment of the Company’s asset, the carrying amoumis of the
Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date w determine whether there is any impainnent. The recoverable amount of the
assets {or where applicable. that of the cash generating unit 10 which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its
value in use. An impairment Joss is recognised whenever the cwrrying amount of an asset or the cash generating unit to which it betongs
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impainment loss s recognised in the statement of profit and loss or against revaluation surplus, where
applicable. 1f at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previousty assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amourit is re-assessed and the asset is retlected at the recoverable amount subject te a maximum of the depreciated historical cost,

Value in use is the present value of estimated furare cash flows expected to arise from the contiruing use of the asset and from its disposal at
the end of its usefui life.

Inventories

[nventories comprising of consumables are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined on the basis of first in first out
(FIFQ) method and includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories (o their preseat location and condition. Net realisable vatue is the
estimated sefting price in the ordinary course of business, less selling expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon rendering of services as per customer contracts 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow o the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

[nterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis.
Foreign carrency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognized in the statement of profit and foss for the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency which are outstanding as at the year-end are transiated at the year-end at the closing
exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items
are carried at cost.

Employee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classitied as short-term employee benefits. These
benefits include salaries and wages, bonus, compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave, The undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by
employees.

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has
no obligation 1o pay any further ameunts. The Company makes specitied monthly contributions towards employee provident -fund to
Govermment administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution re(.ogmsed a5 .an
expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. oo h




Aravon Services Private Limited

{Formerly known as ARAMARYK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2015

(Currency : Indian Rupees)
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3.9

(b)
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Significant accounting poticies (Continued)
Emplayee benefits (Continued)}

Post employment benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that emplovees have eamed in retwrn for their service in the current and prior periods,
that benefit is discounted to determine its present vatue, and the fair value of any plar assets is deducted.

The present valse of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent
actuary at each balance sheet date, using the Projected Usnit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit sepazately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated futuze cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value
of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Operating leases

Lease amangements where the risks and rewards incidental 10 ownership of an asset substantially vests with the lessor, are recognised as
operating leases. Lease payments under eperating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of protit and loss on a straight line
basis.

Taxation

Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of lax for the period determined in accordance with the income-tax law) and deferred
tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Current tax

Provisien for current tax is recognised in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and is made based on the tax liability
using the applicable tax rates and tax laws after taking credit for tax allowances and exemptions.

Deferved 1ax

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognised for timing differences between the profits or losses offered or income taxes and profits / losses as
per the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities and the corresponding deferred rax credit or charge are measured using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there
is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax asset is recognised ondy if there is a virtual cerainty of
realisation of such asset. Deferred tax asset is reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the ameunt
that is reasonably ¢ virtually certain to be realised.

Earnings per share ("EPS")

The basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net prefit atributable to the equity shareholders for the vear by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likety than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

A disclosure for a contingent iability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligalion or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
TESOUrCes is remote, 1o provision or diselosure is made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. 4 T S




Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerty known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2015

{Currency : Indian Rupees)

3

314

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Change in accounting policy

The Company has revised its policy of providing depreciation on fixed assets effective 1 April, 2014, Depreciation is now provided on a
straight line basis for all assets as against the policy of providing on written down vaiue basis. The carrying amousnt as on 1 April, 2014 is
depreciated over the revised remaining useful life. As a result of these changes, the depreciation charge for the year ended 31 March 2013 is
lower by Rs. 5.846.951 and the effect relating to the period prior to | April. 2014 is credit of Rs 3,801,274 in the statement of profitand loss,

Fgr




Aravon Services Private Limited

{Formerly known as ARAMARK India Privale Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2013

(C'urrency: in Indéan Rupees)

31 Marceh 2015 31 March 2014
4 Share capital
Authorised
45,000,000 (31 March 2014: 43,000,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 454,000,000 430,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
39411357 (31 March 2014: 39,154.057) equity shares of Rs [0 each 394,115,570 391,340,570
Totai issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share eapitai 394,115,570 391,540,570
Note :
a Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
31 Mearch 2015 31 March 2014
Equity shares Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amouni|
At the beginning of the vear 39,154,087 391,540,370 38,086,037 386.860.370
Lssued during (he year 257,508 2,575,000 468,000 4,680,000
Outstanding at the end of the vear 39411557 394,115,378 39,154,057 391,540,370
b Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates.

3 Mearch 1015

Equity Share of Rs 10 cach fully paid-up held by: Number of shares Amount
ARAMARK Senior Notes Co.. LS . the holding company 30411547 394, 134T0
ARAMARK India Holdings LLC. LS. Subsidiary of the vlimate holding H 100

company {Aramark Corperation, US)

31 March 2054
Number of shires Anroung|
39,154,047 391540470

10 {08

¢ Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the Company
3t March 2015 3 March 2014
Number of shares % tolding in class Number of shares %a holding in class;
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
ARAMARK Senior Notes Co., US 39411547 99,99%, 39.134.047 95.999%,
d Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard
to dividends and share in the Company’'s residual assets. Fach equity holder is entitled 10 one vote per share.

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after

£/
S

distribution of preferential amounts if any, in proportion to the number of equity shares held. ;

13




Aravon Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited}

Notes to the firancial statements (Continued)
asat 31 March 2013

(Cuwrrency: in Indian Rupees)
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
5 Reserves and surplus

Securities premium account

At the commencement of the year 282,866,080 193,946,080
Add: Premium received on issue of equity shares 48,925,000 88,920,000
331,791,080 282,866,080

(Deficit) in statement of profit and loss

At the commencement of the year {374,800,750) (506,137.017}
(Loss) for the year (54,601,911) (68.663.733}
At the end of the year (629,402,661) (574,800,750

{297.611,581) {291,934,670)

6 Other long-term liabilities

Rent egualisation - 1,352,188
Deposit received - 230,600
- 1,582,188

7 Short-term borrowings

Loans repayable on demand
Unsecured loan

- Cash credit from banks* - 11,002,093

- 11,002,093

* Cash eredit from banks carry interest @ 2% over the prime lending rate computed on a monthly
basis on actual amount utilised, and are repayable on demand. These are secured by standby letter of
credit trom Barclays Bank PLC, USA arranged by Aramark Corporation, US (erstwhile Ultimate
Holding Company).

Cash credit facility has been withdrawn during the year ended 31 March 2015

8 Trade payables

For goods and services

Due to
- micro and small suppliers {refer note 26.3} 101,743 41,361
- others 10,488,767 39,312,120

10,390,512 39353 481

1%




Aravon Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 Murch 2013

(Currency: in [ndian Rupees)

9 Other current liabilities

Capital creditors
Employee benefits payable
Deposits received
Statutory dues*

* Statutory dues include:
- Service tax
- TDS payable
- Provident fund
- ESIC
- Profession tax
- Sales tax
- Labour welfare fund

10 Short- term provisions
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 26.2)
Compensated absences

20

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

80,197 573,184
64,557,739 34,874,434
407,889 397717
8,630,975 12.146.512
73,676,800 48,493,897
2,642,731 4,152,517
482,930 2,595.880
3,704,365 3,542,580
873,066 968,288
405,762 506,004
499,129 307,562
22,992 73.681
3,126,755 3.348.462
4,092,813 4,681,455
7.219.568 8.320.917
p A




Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 20135

(Currency: in Indian Rupees)

11 Fixed assets

a. Tangible fixed assets
Pl F i E .
au.r and _Ofﬁee Computers urniture .and L easeh.old Vehicles Total

machinery equipment fittings premises
Gross Block
Asat T April 2043 11.027,503 783443 4033019 167,565 - 2004837 18.017.268
Additions 13.294 473 2,326,785 1,941,044 3001385 13.835.023 1.502.080 37.921.2090
Deletions 508,322 04,349 101,918 36,050 - - 831,138
As at 31 March 2014 25723654 3015381 3873045 3133400 13855022 3.5060917 35107420
Asat | Apnl 2014 25723634 3.015.381 5.8373.04% 3033300 13855023 3.500917 53107420
Additions 740217 070.004 1,015,186 2(.700 - - 2.457.167
Deletions 1,587,185 40.598 475871 37,036 - 1,134,409 3,325,009
As at 31 March 2015 24,876,686 3,644,847 6422360 3.018.064 13,855,023 1,322,508 54.230.488
Accumulated depreciation
Asar i Aprit 2013 911,352 244 4066 2,503,078 37541 - 335934 0052368
Charge for the year 2,930,743 4274972 852.293% 63987 2878678 693,545 8389218
Deletions * adjustments 259002 50,629 90.130 17.045 - - 418.012
As a3 March 2013 3.582.493 621.309 3.263.235 523.883 2878.078 1051476 14.023,574
Asar | April 2014 3.382.4u3 621,809 3263135 623883 2378678 1031476 14.023.574
Charge for the year 5.883.009 1737336 648,440 2120.238 JONERNE {175.857) 20,353,960
Deletions ¢ adjustments 276,001 32327 372,604 26,569 - 215,334 923355
As at 3 March 2015 11,189,539t 2,326,318 3,541,077 2,787,352 13,021,376 660.2635 33,456,179
Net block
As at 31 March 2014 20,141,161 2303372 2,607.810 3309517 11.976.343 2455441 41083846
As at 31 March 2013 13.687.095 1318,529 1.881,283 4,512 833,647 1,662,243 13,783,309
Capirai work-in-progress

Plant F i 2

Ian.t and .Ofﬁce Computers urniture .and Leaseh'old Venicles Total

machinery equipment fittings premises
Asat | April 2013 - - 14,851,532 14,851,532
Additions - - -
Assets Capitalised during the
vear - - 14851332 14.851.332
As at 3 Mareh 2014 - - - - - - -
As o b oapril 2014 - - - -
Additions - - N .
Assets capitalised during the year - - - -
As at 3 March 2013 - - - - - - _
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Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited}

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as ar 3/ March 2013

{Currency: in Indian Rupees)
11  Fixed assets (Continued)

b. Intangible fixed assets

As at 31 March 2015

Software Total
Gross Block
As at | April 2013 100,000 100,000
Additions 345.712 545712
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2014 645,712 643,712
Asat | Apnl 2014 o943, 712 645712
Additions 1.717.721 1721
Delerions R
As at 31 March 2135 2363433 2,363,433
Accumulated amortisation
As at b Apnl 2013 (1KY 110
Charge for the year 46,889 40,880
Impairment -
Deletions / adjustments
Asat 31 March 2014 46,999 46,999
As at | April 2014 46999 46,999
Charge lor the vear 373444 373414
Deletions ¢ adjustnents - -
As at 3 March 2015 420,413 420,413
Net block
As at 31 March 2014 598,713 598,713
As at 31 Mareh 2015 £.943.020 1,943,020
Entangible assets under development

Software Total
As at | April 2013 .
Additions 901565 00.563
Assets capitalised during the year - -
As af 3t March 2014 94,563 91,363
Asat | April 2004 Q08,565 900,563
Additions . R
Assets capitalised duriny the vear 900,365 900,305

22




Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2013

{Currency: in Indian Rupees)

12

13

14

15

16

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Arising on account of timing difference in : -

Expenditure allowed on payment basis under Section 43B of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Provision for doubtful receivables

Disaliowance under Section 40ta) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

Un-absorbed depreciation

Carry forward losses

Other disallowances

Difference between book depreciation and depreciation under the Income-tax Act. 1961

Deferred tax assets®

* Deferred tax assets have not been recognised due (o absence of virtual certainty of set off of
unabsorbed losses against taxable profits in the foreseeable future.

Long-term loans and advances
fUnsecured. considered good)

To parties other than refated parties
Securnity deposits

Other loans and advances
Advance income-tax (net of provision for tax of Rs Nil (31 March 2614 : Rs Nif)

Other non-current assets

Balance with bank - fixed deposit accounts with maturity greater than twelve months
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Inventories
tvalued ar lower of cost or net realisable vaiue;

Consumables

Trade receivables
(Unsecured)

Receivables cutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they became due for

payment

Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Other receivables

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful receivabiles

23

31 Mareh 2015

31 March 2014

7,932,397 6,521,854
6,285,283 1,650,965
2,754,500 8.495 445
63,970,850 59,008 503
- 60,400,424
72,671 175,170
19,535,177 19.35% 262
102,550,878 133,610,625
630,595 7.607.374
28,889,811 22,304,559
29,520 406 20.0(1.033
1,587,350 674,722
303 -
1,587.653 674.722
2,911,036 3,792,591
2911056 3.792 59
3,338,912 5,341,843
15,147,691 5,241,157
(15,147,691) (3.241.157)
3,338,912 5.341.843
83,781,334 102,728 483
1,271,809 -
{1.271,809) -
83,781,334 102,728 483
87,120,246 108,070,326




Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as ar 31 March 2013

{Currency: in Indian Rupees)

17

18

19

Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks
- On current account
- On fixed deposit account with original maturity less than theee months

Note: Details of other bank halances
Bank balances avaitable on demand ¢ depesits with original maturity of 3 months or less included
under "Cash and cash equivalents’ in note 17

Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date included under *Other non-current
assets” in note (4

Short-term loans and advances
tUnsecured. considered good )

Other short-term loans and advances
Cenvat credit receivable

Prepaid expenses

Other loans and advances

Advances to employees

To parties other than refated pariies
Security deposits {Net of provision Rs. 3.533.780 (31 March 2014 Rs. 955,000

QOther current assets

Unbilled revenue
[nterest acerued on fixed deposits

24

31 March 2015

31 Mwreh 2014

627,630 596.312
7,654,269 1.769,412
11,167,000 -
19,448,899 2365774
11,167,000 -
1,587,350 674.722
3,375,101 5,359.775
1,366,143 1.389.274
130,935 60,175
224,960 248 608
8.140,670 4,799,035
13.237.809 12.056 867
11,410,502 9,712,189
27,969 -
11,438,471 9112.189
7]
&
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Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK I[ndia Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jfor the year ended 31 March 2013

{Currency: in Indian Rupees)

20

21

22

23

24

Revenue from operations

Sale of services
- Food services

- Housekeeping and manpower services
- Rebiilables and others

Revenue from operations
Other income
Interest income on bank deposits

Liabilities no longer required written back *
Miscellaneous income

* Includes Rs. 21,301,890 being liability ne longer payable reversed pursuant
to C'redit Note issued by Arvamark Corporation, USA dated 31 August 2014.

Cost of materials consumed

inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inverttory at the end of the year
Cost of raw materials consuwmed

Break-up of cost of materials consumed
- Food services
- Housekeeping and manpower services
- Rebiliables and others

Details of inventory

Consumables

- Food services

- Housekeeping and manpower services

Employee benefits

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Compensated absences

Staft welfare expenses

Finance costs

interest on cash credit

31 March 2013

57,402,511
392,147,324
17,125,102

456,674,937

ammememem et e S

507,862
22,785,821
813,706

24,107 389

3,792,591
47,286,788
51,079,379

291,056

48,168,323
19,184,057

13,463,673
3,520,593

48,168,323

880,379
2,030,477

21911,056

344,285,036
35,521,109
7,472,841
5,114,935

BT AT

283,941

183,941

31 March 2084

43,453,948
290,991,632
8700319

343.145.89%

217.975
1.694.,5¢1
63,510

1,980,980

2.378.943
45,182,062
47,561,005

3,792,594

43768414

23.031,750
11,739.239
6,997,423

43.768.414

1,332,794
24359797

3,792,591

234,243,799
27,139 462
6,383,532
1627978

205414771

481.292

481,292



Aravon Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 20143

(Caurrency: in Indian Rupees)

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
25 Other expenses
Fuel and gas 3,438,510 3.287.187
Service charges 257,881 1,578,391
Transportation charges 1,236,581 1,793,618
Laundry expenses 720,418 140,869
Travelling and conveyance expenses 6,914,039 11,282,408
Rent 15,490,111 16,594,379
Auditors' resnuneration (Refer note below) 1,602,634 1,346,230
Communication and telephone expenses 2,563,503 1.954,437
Printing and stationery 1,254,392 1,561,097
Legal and professional fees 1,933,194 3,288,908
Vehicle expenses 154,652 237543
Repairs and maintenance
Building 4,775,784 4,775,784
Machinery - -
Others 3,373,994 2.046,116
Water and electricity charges 1,442,261 1.636,448
Brokerage expenses 126,250 133,559
(ffice expenses 379.812 635277
Rates and taxes 4,055,643 1.277.439
Insurance expenses 5,419,169 3,366,251
Provision for doubtful receivables 11,318,107 3,268,438
Less: - Write back of provision, no longer required - 18,318,107 - 3268.438
Bad debts written-of{ 305,707 19,053,776
Less: - Provision for doubtiul receivables 119,764 165,943 19,055,776 -
Provision tor security deposit 2,578,780 G53.000
Recruitment ¢cost 523978 836,517
Loss on fixed assets discarded {net) 2074518 226083
Miscellangous expenses 1,808,524 1427413
73.808.678 63,690,034
Note: Auditors' remuneration (excluding service tax)
As auditor
Statutory audit 1,200,800 1,000.000
Tax audit 350,000 306250
Reimbursement of expenses 52,634 40,000
1.602.634 1.346.250

{l
A
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Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerty known as ARAMARK India Private Limited}

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sor the year ended 31 March 20135

{Currency : Indian Rupees)

26

26,1

26.2

fii)

Notes to accounts

Contingent liablities

Contingent liabilities

Notice of demand received under Section 144 of the Income-tax Act. 1961 in respect of assessment vear 2009-10,
matter is upheid by Income Tax Appeilate Tribunal. The Company has filed a miscellaneous application for the
rectification of order 1ssued by the Income Tax Appeilate Tribunal.

The Company is contesting the demand and the Management. including its Tax Advisor. believes that the demand is
tikely t0 be rejected by the lacome Tax Appeliate Tribunal on the basis of miscellancous application and accordingly no
provision has been made }

Notice of demand received under Section 271 of the Income-tax Act. 1961 in respect of assessment year 2009-10, matter
15 pending with Comunissioner of Income Tax { Appeals).

(The Company is contesting the demand and the Management. including its Tax Advisor, believes thal the demand is
Tikely to be rejected and accordingly no provision has been made. )

Disputed Service Tax demand pending with the Commissioner of Service Tax.
- From October 2007 titl March 2012
- From April 2012 (i}l September 2013

(Service Tax deparinent has inadvertently not considered the payment of Rs. 117,972,984 aiready made by the Company
during the peried Octaber 2007 il March 2012, A sum of Rs. 93.635 demanded by the Service Tax department for the
services rendered to EOUs during the period October 2007 till March 2012 was paid by the Compiny subsequent to
receiving the demand. For balance amount of Rs 23.957,982 for the pericdl October 2007 ull March 212 and Rs.
3,709,352 tor the period April 2012 i} Seplember 2013 no provision has been made. since the Company is contesting
the demand and the Management including its Legal Advisor believes that the demand is likely to be rejected The
Company has already (xled reply 1o the show cause notice issued by Service Tax departinent)

Show cause notice isseed by the Additional Commissioner of Service Tax for recovery of CENVAT credit wrongly
availed by the Company. under Rule 603300} of CENVAT Credit Rules. 2004 (COR) of Rs. 1280 137 along with
interest under Rule 603AN1) & Rule 14 of CCR and penalty under Rule 1533 of COR.

(The Company hus suo moto reversed the amount of CENVAT Credit wrongly availed of Rs, 1.104.201 -, The Company
is contesting the demand and the Management including its Legal Advisor believes that the demand is likelv to be
rejected. The Company is in the process of filing a reply (o the show cause notics issued by Service Tax departinent}.

M March 2015

6.288,410

3.570.336

142,026,621

5,789,552

1,289,182

31 March 2014

6.288.410

5370336

142,026,621

5.709.552

Employee benefits:
Coniribution to provident funds

Detined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying emplovees towards
Provident Fusd, which is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The
contributions arg charged to the Statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as an expense towards contribution to

Provident fund for the year is Rs 3.926.510 (31 March 2614; Rs 7.243.2303,

Defined benefit plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all
employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment based on the respective
employee’s defined portion of last salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Company contributes each year 1o a gratuity
fund administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The amount recognised as an expense in the Statement of Protit and Loss towards

grawuity benefits is Rs 3,749,480 (31 March 20i4: Rs 3,932,019}

L -

I:.
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Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2013

(Currency : indian Rupees)

26 Notes to accounts (Continued)
26.2  Employee benefits: (Continued)

fif) Defined benefit plans (Continaed}

The following table summarizes the principa! assumptions used for defined benefit obligation:

Particulars 31 March 2013 3E Macch 2014
Discount rate per annum 7.99% 8.72%
Rate of retumn on plan assets 799" 3.70%
Atirition rate - corporate office staff 31.00% 28.00%
Attrition rate - Frongline office staff 42,00, 45.00%
Salary escalation rate - corporate office staf¥ per anman 10.00%, 10.60%%
Salary escalation rate - frontline office staff per annum 12.08% 12.00%

The estimate of future salary increase, considered in the actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promoetion and other relevant
tactors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The Company evaluates these assumptions annually based on its long-term plans of growth and industry standards. The discount rates are
based on current market yieids on government bonds consistent with the eurrency and estimated term of the post employment benefits
obligations.

26,3 Due to micro and smalf suppliers
Under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 whick came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are

required to be made relating 10 dues 1o Micro and Small Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the
management, the following are details related 1o Micro and Small Enterprises. This has been relied upon by the audizors.

31 March 2013 31 March 2014
The amounts remaining unpaid o micro and small suppliers as at the end of the vear ¢ period
- Principal 101,745 41 301
- Interest -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Mediun Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -

(MSMED Act. 2006')

The amounts of the payinents made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting - -
vear

The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment twhich have been paid but - -
bevond the appointed day during the vear ¢ period} but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act.
006,

Vhe amount of ntevest accrued and remaining unpaid 2t the end of sach accounting year - -

The amount of further iaterest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to fie small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006

26.4  Operating lease obligations

The Compary is obligated under non-cancellable leases primarily for office premises which is renewable thereafter as per the term of the
respective agreements. Rental payments under operating leases during the year aggregating Rs. 16,842,299 (31 March 2014: Rs 16.416,271)
have been charged to the statement profit and loss.




Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2013

{Currency : Indian Rupees)
26 Notes to accounts (Continued)

26.5 a} CIF Value of import

Particulars 31 March 2085 31 March 2064
CIF Value of materials 72,935 1.309.048
CIF Value of capital yoods - 3,796,677
Tatal 72,935 5.105.723

b) Expenditure in foreign currency fon accrual basis}

Particulars 31 March 2015 3 March 2014
Professional and consultancy fees® 667,154 2,506,928
Personne! cost* 3,383,019 6.741.808
Rovalty expenses* . 2885101
Total 4,050,173 0.328.957

* The liability {including current year charges) has been reversed vide Credit Note issued by Aramark Corporation, USA dated
31 August 2014,

26.6  Compuation of Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Net (oss) augibutable to equity shareholders {(54,601.9t1) 168.663.733)

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 39,154.087 38.0806.057
Equity shares tssued during the vear 237504 +68.,000
Nuwmber of equity shares at the end of the vear 39.481.557 3054057
Weighted average nunber of equity shares outstanding during the year for basic FPS 39,294,954 IRATATI
Basic earnings per share {Rs) (£33 (L7

26,7 Related party disclosures

1. Related party relationships

A. Parties where contral exists

Holding Company
I ARAMARK Semor Notes Co., US (till 31 March 20135)

Lltimate Holding Company
I ARAMARK Corporation. US (il 31 March 2015y

B. Key Managerial Persoitnel
U Mr. Luis Manickam, Director and President (1itt 31 March 2013)
2 \Mr Balkishan Chandak, Dircctor {From 29 September 2084 until 31 March 2015 >,;J%

*
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Aravon Services Private Limited
{Formerly known as ARAMARK India Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2015

(Curreney : Indian Rupees)
26 Notes to accounts (Continued)
26.7  Related party disclosures (Continued)

Il Related party with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Particulars 31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Haolding Campany
1ssue of equity shaires 2,575,000 4,680,000

Securibies premium on equity shares issued 48,925,000 BH.G20.000

bitimate Holding com pany

Professional and consubtancy fees 667,154 2500908
Personnet cost 3,383,019 6741508
Recovery of expenses (recemt) (726,022} {0,038,220)
Rovalty expenses - 250,161
Rennbursiment of expenses . 148177

Liabiiies no longer reguired written back (23.754.209)

Stand-by letter of credn from Barclays Bank PLC USA, arranged by Aramark Corporation US (Uhenate Holding
Company} m favour of the Company for a sanctioned cash credit bt of Rs. 270 crores stands withdrawn as at 3st - 11,002,093
March 2013

hey management personnel
Remuneration®

- Luis Manickam

- Balkishan Chandak

43,632,736 21,087,253
7,857,658

Closing balance

Eltimate Holding Conepany

ARAMARK Corpuration, US (Payalle) - 20430038

Key management personnel
Remuneration payable

- Lws Manickam

- Balkishan Chandak

14,408,411
4,564,018

* Remuneration does not mehude churge Yor gratigy and leave engashment as emplovec-wise break up s
not avatlable

# Duning the year, Aramark Corporation had issued a credst note dated 31 August 2014 for Rs 23,754,209
towards waiver of professional and consultaney fees. personnel cest, rovalty expenses and reimbursement of
expenses that were outsianding in the books as on that date.

26.8  Appointment of Company Secretary

The tinancial statements of the Company have been authenticated by a whole time company secretary appointed by the Company on 22 May
2015.

3




Aravon Services Private Limited
(Formerly known as ARAMARK Iadia Private Linvted)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 37 Murch 2015

(Currency | Indian Rupees)
26  Notes to accounts (Continued)
26.%  Transler pricing

The Company's manageiment is of the apimion that its intermnational transactions with relited parties are at arms length and that the Company
is in compliunce with the 1ansfer pricing legisiation as per independent accountant’s report for the year ended 31 March 2014, Based on the
above, the Company's management believes that the Company's international Trasactions with the related partics post 31 March 2014
continue to be at arms length and that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements. particularly on the
amount of tax expense and that of the provision for taxation.

26.10  Prior period comparatives
Lip to the previous year, profit on sale of fixed assets of Ry, 71416 was shown under other income. This hay now been netted off with loss
on sale of fixed assets under note 25,

Up to the previous year. Compensated absences of Ry 6.383.532 included under Salartes, wages and Bonus have now heen shown separately
under nete 23,

For B § R & Associates LLP For and behall of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accomniants Aravon Services Private Limited
cr s chis{rél‘ipn No: [ 1623TW/ W-100024 {Formly knawn as Aramark India Peivate Limited)

" T e CIN: U93000MH2007FTC172493

o
A
oo )

Shabbir Readymadewala Ranjit Nair Subrata Nag
Purmer Direcror Director
NMembership Ne: {00060 DIN: 07086634 DIN: 02234000

Mumbis 3 . Mumbai W
Date: Qﬁ ) ; . Date: ' /
E P 3o ms .

Nupar Singh
Secretary
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lieve Solutions Private Limited

to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2015 {continued)

Fixed assets

{Amount in Rs

Gross block Accumulated depreciation and amortisation Net block
Description As at As at As at Charge for the As at As at As at
Additions Deletions Deletions

1 January 2014 31 March 2015 1 January 2014 period 31 March 2015 31 March 2015 |31 December 201:
Tangible assets
Office Equipment 136,567 136,567 21,010 21,010 115,557 -
Total {A) 136,567 136,567 21,010 21,010 115,557 -
Intangible assets
Computer software - - - - - -
Total (B) - - - - - .
Total (A)}+(B) - 136,567 136,567 - 21,010 21,010 115,557 -
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Report of Independent Certified Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors
Quess Corp (USA) Inc.
(formally known as Magna InfoTech, Inc.)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Quess Corp (USA) Inc. (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2015,
and the related statements of operations and stockholder’s deficit and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Quess Corp (USA) Inc. as of March 31, 2015 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
conern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company is a holding company with limited
operations and is dependent upon shareholder funding to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do
not include any adjustments that might result from the countcome of this uncertainy

WV%#AM%RA-

New York, New York
May 21, 2015



QUESS CORP (USA), INC.
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF MARCH 31, 2015

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqivalents $ 5,075
Due fom affiliates 95,000
Total current assets 100,075
Long term assets:
Investment in MIFX Holdings, Inc. 49
Other assets 1,200
Total assets $ 101,324

Liabilities and Stockholdet's Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 1,752
Total current liabilites 1,752
Stockholdet's equity
Common stock, 200 shares authorized, 1 share issued and outstanding, no par
value 100,000
Accumulated defecit (428)
Total stockholder's equity 99,572
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity $ 101,324

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Revenues
Operating expenses
Professional fees
Total operating expenses
Loss before income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net loss

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

QUESS CORP (USA), INC.
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

3

428
428

(428)

(428)



QUESS CORP (USA), INC.
STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Common Accumulated
Stock Deficit Total
Beginning balance, April 1, 2014 $ - $ - $ -
Issuance of common stock 100,000 - 100,000
Net loss - (428) (428)
Ending balance, March 31, 2015 $ 100,000 $ (428) $ 99,572

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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QUESS CORP (USA), INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENED MARCH 31, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Increase in other assets
Increase in accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Invesment in MFX Holdings
Loan to affiliate
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from Issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Cash paid for income taxes

Cash paid for interest

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

5

$ (428)

(1,200)
1,752
124

#9)

(95,000
(95,049)

100,000
100,000

5,075

$ 5,075
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QUESS CORP (USA), INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial
statements follows.

Business and organization

Magna InfoTech, Inc. (“the Company”), a Delaware corporation, was incorporated on November 19, 2013.
The Company is wholly owned by Magna Infotech Ltd, India (“the Parent”). On March 23, 2015, the
Company changed its name to Quess Corp (USA), Inc. The Company is currently a holding company which
owns fortynine percent (49%) of MFX Holdings, Inc.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the amounts of assets and
liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses. These estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best estimates and judgment.
Management regularly evaluates its estimates and assumptions using historical experience and other factors;
however, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments
purchased with an original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments in Nonconsolidated Affiliates

In general, investments in which the Company owns 20 percent to 50 percent of an entity’s equity interest or
otherwise exercises significant influence over the investee are accounted for under the equity method. The
Company reviews the value of equity method investments and records impairment charges in the statement
of operations for any decline in value that is determined to be other-than-temporary.

Income Taxes

The Company follows Accounting Standards Codification subtopic 740-10, Income Taxes (“ASC 740-107)
for recording the provision for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based upon the
difference between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted
marginal tax rate applicable when the related asset or liability is expected to be realized or settled. Deferred
income tax expenses or benefits are based on the changes in the asset or liability during each period. If
available evidence suggests that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is
more likely than not to be realized. Future changes in such valuation allowance are included in the provision
for deferred income taxes in the period of change. Deferred income taxes may arise from temporary
differences resulting from income and expense items reported for financial accounting and tax purposes in
different periods.



QUESS CORP (USA), INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

NOTE 2 -LIQUIDTIY

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company is a
holding company with limited operations and is dependent upon shareholder funding to continue as a going
concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the countcome of
this uncertainy

NOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company loaned $95,000 to Magna lIkya InfoTech, an affiliate of
the Parent. The loan receivable is due upon demand and is non-interest bearing.

NOTE 4 - STOCKHOLDER EQUITY

The Company has 200 shares authorized common shares at no par value. As of March 31, 2015, the
Company has one (1) shate of common stock issued and outstanding.

NOTE 5 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through May 21,
2015, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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MFX Infotech Pvt Ltd

Notes to the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015

)

]r\d

z'l

9 Fixed assets

(Amount in Rs)

Gross block Accumulated depreciation and amortisation Net block
Description As at . i As at As at Charge for the i As at As at As at
Additions Deletions Delet
1 April 2014 31 March 2015 1 April 2014 period eletions 31March2015 | 31March2015 | 31 March 2014
Tangible assets
Office equipment 2,008,701 2,008,701 162,007 162,007 1,846,694 -
Computer equipment 397,806 397,806 31,635 31,635 366,171 -
Total (A) 2,406,507 2,406,507 193,642 193,642 2,212,865 -
Intangible assets
Computer software - - - - ~
Total (B) - - - - . N
Total (A)+(B) 2,406,507 2,406,507 193,642 193,642 2,212,865 -
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